
 

Meeting Notice 

 

 

Paratransit Advisory and 

Planning Committee  
Monday, January 26, 2015, 1:00 p.m. 

1111 Broadway, Suite 800 

Oakland, CA 94607 

 

Please note that the Monday, January 26, 2015 PAPCO 

meeting will be from 1:00 to 3:30 p.m. Please plan your 

transportation accordingly. 

 
Mission Statement 

The mission of the Alameda County Transportation Commission 

(Alameda CTC) is to plan, fund and deliver transportation programs and 

projects that expand access and improve mobility to foster a vibrant 

and livable Alameda County. 

 

Public Comments 

Public comments are limited to 3 minutes. Items not on the agenda are 

covered during the Public Comment section of the meeting, and items 

specific to an agenda item are covered during that agenda item 

discussion. If you wish to make a comment, fill out a speaker card, hand 

it to the clerk of the Commission, and wait until the chair calls your 

name. When you are summoned, come to the microphone and give 

your name and comment. 

 

Reminder 

Please turn off your cell phones during the meeting. Please do not wear 

scented products so individuals with environmental sensitivities may attend 

the meeting. 

Commission Chair 

Supervisor Scott Haggerty, District 1 

 

Commission Vice Chair 

Councilmember Rebecca Kaplan, 

City of Oakland 

 

AC Transit 

Director Elsa Ortiz 

 

Alameda County 

Supervisor Richard Valle, District 2 

Supervisor Wilma Chan, District 3 

Supervisor Nate Miley, District 4 

Supervisor Keith Carson, District 5 

 

BART 

Director Thomas Blalock 

 

City of Alameda 

TBD 

 

City of Albany 

Vice Mayor Peter Maass 

 

City of Berkeley 

Councilmember Laurie Capitelli 

 

City of Dublin 

Mayor David Haubert 

 

City of Emeryville 

Vice Mayor Ruth Atkin 

 

City of Fremont 

Mayor Bill Harrison 

 

City of Hayward 

Mayor Barbara Halliday 

 

City of Livermore 

Mayor John Marchand 

 

City of Newark 

Councilmember Luis Freitas 

 

City of Oakland 

Vice Mayor Larry Reid 

 

City of Piedmont 

Mayor Margaret Fujioka 

 

City of Pleasanton 

Mayor Jerry Thorne  

 

City of San Leandro 

TBD 

 

City of Union City 

Mayor Carol Dutra-Vernaci 

 

 

Executive Director 

Arthur L. Dao 
 



 

Recording of Public Meetings 

The executive director or designee may designate one or more locations from which members of the 

public may broadcast, photograph, video record, or tape record open and public meetings without 

causing a distraction. If the Commission or any committee reasonably finds that noise, illumination, or 

obstruction of view related to these activities would persistently disrupt the proceedings, these 

activities must be discontinued or restricted as determined by the Commission or such committee (CA 

Government Code Sections 54953.5-54953.6). 

 

Location Map 

Alameda CTC 

1111 Broadway, Suite 800 

Oakland, CA  94607 

Alameda CTC is accessible by multiple 

transportation modes. The office is 

conveniently located near the  

12th Street/City Center BART station 

and many AC Transit bus lines. Bicycle 

parking is available on the street and in 

the BART station as well as in electronic 

lockers at 14th Street and Broadway 

near Frank Ogawa Plaza (requires 

purchase of key card from bikelink.org). 

Garage parking is located beneath City Center, accessible via entrances on 14th Street between 1300 

Clay Street and 505 14th Street buildings, or via 11th Street just past Clay Street. To plan your trip to 

Alameda CTC visit www.511.org. 

 

Accessibility 

Public meetings at Alameda CTC are wheelchair accessible under the Americans with Disabilities 

Act. Guide and assistance dogs are welcome.  

Call 510-893-3347 (Voice) or 510-834-6754 (TTD) five days in advance to request a sign-language 

interpreter. 

 

     

 

Meeting Schedule 

The Alameda CTC meeting calendar lists all public meetings and is available at 

www.AlamedaCTC.org/events/upcoming/now. 

 

http://www.511.org/
http://www.alamedactc.org/events/upcoming/now


 

Paperless Policy 

On March 28, 2013, the Alameda CTC Commission approved the implementation of paperless 

meeting packet distribution. Hard copies are available by request only. Agendas and all 

accompanying staff reports are available electronically on the Alameda CTC website at 

www.AlamedaCTC.org/events/month/now. Any other notice required or permitted to be given 

under these bylaws will follow the same policy. PAPCO members receive an exception to the 

paperless policy and will continue to receive notices via U.S. Postal Service in addition to electronic 

versions. Members can request to opt-out of paper notices. 

 

Glossary of Terms 

A glossary of terms that includes frequently used industry terms and 

acronyms is available on the Alameda CTC website at www.AlamedaCTC.org/app_pages/view/8081. 

 

Connect with Alameda CTC 

www.AlamedaCTC.org facebook.com/AlamedaCTC 

 @AlamedaCTC 

 youtube.com/user/AlamedaCTC 

 

file://ACTCFS01/SHARED/AlaCTC_Meetings/Community_TACs/PAPCO/Templates/Meeting_Notice/www.AlamedaCTC.org/events/month/now
http://www.alamedactc.org/app_pages/view/8081
http://www.alamedactc.org/
http://www.facebook.com/AlamedaCTC
https://twitter.com/AlamedaCTC
http://www.youtube.com/user/AlamedaCTC


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank. 



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150126\PAPCO_Meeting_Agenda_20150126.docx (A = Action Item; I = Information 

Item) 

 

Paratransit Advisory Planning Committee 
Meeting Agenda 

Monday, January 26, 2015, 1:00 p.m. 

  Chair: Sylvia Stadmire 

Vice Chair: Will Scott 

Staff Liaisons: Naomi Armenta, 

Jacki Taylor 

Public Meeting Coordinator: 

Krystle Pasco 

  

1:00 – 1:12 p.m. 

Chair 
1. Welcome and 

Introductions 

1:12 – 1:15 p.m. 

Public 
2. Public Comment Page A/I 

1:15 – 1:20 p.m. 

Chair 
3. Administration 

  

 3.1. November 24, 2014 PAPCO 

Meeting Minutes  

1 A 

 Recommendation: Approve the  

November 24, 2014 PAPCO 

meeting minutes. 

  

1:20 – 1:50 p.m. 

Staff 

4. Draft Implementation Guidelines Review 

and Discussion 

9 I 

 The Committee will review and discuss 

potential revisions to the Implementation 

Guidelines for FY 2015/16. 

  

1:50 – 2:10 p.m. 

Guest Speakers 

5. Livermore Amador Valley Transit 

Authority (LAVTA) Quarterly Report  

 I 

 The Committee will receive a quarterly 

report from Livermore Amador Valley 

Transit Authority (LAVTA). 

 

  



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150126\PAPCO_Meeting_Agenda_20150126.docx (A = Action Item; I = Information 

Item) 

 

2:10 – 2:30 p.m. 

Guest Speakers 

6. Gap Grant Cycle 5 Program Report: Tri-

City Volunteer Driver Programs 

 I 

 The Committee will receive a Gap Grant 

Cycle 5 program report from the Tri-City 

Volunteer Driver Programs. 

  

2:30 – 2:50 p.m. 

Guest Speakers 

7. Gap Grant Cycle 5 Program Report: 

Rides for Seniors 

 I 

 The Committee will receive a Gap Grant 

Cycle 5 program report from Rides for 

Seniors. 

  

2:50 – 3:00 p.m. 

PAPCO 
8. Member Reports on PAPCO Mission, 

Roles, and Responsibilities 

Implementation 

  

 8.1. PAPCO Calendar of Events 29 I 

 8.2. PAPCO Work Plan 31 I 

 8.3. PAPCO Appointments 35 I 

3:00 – 3:10 p.m. 

 
9. Committee Reports (Verbal)   

Sharon Powers 9.1. East Bay Paratransit Service Review 

Advisory Committee (SRAC) 
 I 

Herb Hastings 9.2. Citizens Watchdog Committee 

(CWC) 
 I 

 10. ADA Mandated Program and Policy 

Reports 

  

 10.1. November 4, 2014 East Bay 

Paratransit Service Review 

Advisory Committee Meeting 

Minutes 

37 I 

3:10 – 3:30 p.m. 11. Information Items   



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150126\PAPCO_Meeting_Agenda_20150126.docx (A = Action Item; I = Information 

Item) 

 

Staff 11.1. Mobility Management – Planning 

for Transportation after Medical 

Services: A Guide for Service 

Members, Veterans & Their Family 

Caregivers 

43 I 

Krystle Pasco 11.2. Outreach Update – 2014 

Paratransit Outreach Summary 

Report 

45 I 

Staff 11.3. Gap Grant Cycle 5 Update  I 

Staff 11.4. Section 5310 Funding Update 57 I 

Staff 11.5. Preparedness Follow-up 59 I 

Staff 11.6. Other Staff Updates  I 

 12. Draft Agenda Items for February 23, 

2015 PAPCO and Joint PAPCO/ParaTAC 

Meetings 

 I 

 12.1. Gap Grant Cycle 5 Update   

 12.2. Gap Grant Cycle 5 Program 

Report: Taxi-Up & Go Project 

  

 12.3. Final Implementation Guidelines 

Review and Discussion 

  

 12.4. Joint Discussion - CTP    

3:30 p.m. 13. Adjournment   

 

Next PAPCO Meeting: February 23, 2015 

Next Joint PAPCO/ParaTAC Meeting: February 23, 2015 

All items on the agenda are subject to action and/or change by the 

Committee. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank. 



 

 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150126\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20141124.docx  

 

Paratransit Advisory and Planning Committee 
Meeting Minutes 

Monday, November 24, 2014, 1:00 p.m. 3.1 

 
MEETING ATTENDEES 

Attendance Key (A = Absent, P = Present) 

Members: 

_P_ Sylvia Stadmire, 

Chair 

_A_ Will Scott,  

Vice-Chair 

_A_ Larry Bunn 

_P_ Shawn Costello 

_P_ Herb Hastings 

_A_ Joyce 

Jacobson 

_P Sandra  

Johnson-Simon 

_P Jonah Markowitz 

_P Rev. Carolyn Orr 

_P Suzanne Ortt 

_A Thomas Perez 

_P Sharon Powers 

_P Vanessa Proee 

 

_A Carmen Rivera-

Hendrickson 

_P Michelle Rousey 

_P Harriette 

Saunders 

_A Margaret Walker 

_P Esther Waltz 

_P Hale Zukas

 

Staff:  

_P_ Jacki Taylor, Program Analyst 

_P_ Naomi Armenta, Paratransit Coordinator 

_P_ Krystle Pasco, Paratransit Coordination Team 

_P_ Cathleen Sullivan, Paratransit Coordination Team 

_P_ Terra Curtis, Paratransit Coordination Team 

 

Guests:  

Ken Bukowski, Public Member; Jennifer Cullen, Senior Support Program of 

the Tri-Valley; Sarah Dawn-Smith, Bay Area Outreach and Recreation 

Program (BORP); Rashida Kamara, East Bay Paratransit; Kim Ridgeway, 

AC Transit; Laura Timothy, BART; Elena Vanloo, BART 

 

MEETING MINUTES 

 

1. Welcome and Introductions 

Sylvia Stadmire, PAPCO Chair, called the meeting to order at 

1:10 p.m. and confirmed a quorum. The meeting began with 

introductions and a review of the meeting outcomes. 

 

2. Public Comment 

Page 1



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150126\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20141124.docx  

 

Ken Bukowski, a member of the public, noted that he recently posted 

the video of the Goods Movement Roundtable that happened on 

Saturday, November 15th onto his website: www.regional-video.com. 

 

3. Administration 

 

3.1. October 27, 2014 PAPCO Meeting Minutes 

Herb Hastings moved to approve the October 27, 2014 PAPCO 

Meeting minutes as written. Esther Waltz seconded the motion. The 

motion passed (10-0-0). Members Herb Hastings, Sandra Johnson-

Simon, Carolyn Orr, Suzanne Ortt, Sharon Powers, Vanessa Proee, 

Harriette Saunders, Sylvia Stadmire, Esther Waltz, and Hale Zukas 

were present. 

 

3.2. October 27, 2014 Joint PAPCO and ParaTAC Meeting Minutes 

Sandra Johnson-Simon moved to approve the October 27, 2014 

Joint PAPCO and ParaTAC Meeting minutes as written. Esther 

Waltz seconded the motion. The motion passed (10-0-0). Members 

Herb Hastings, Sandra Johnson-Simon, Carolyn Orr, Suzanne Ortt, 

Sharon Powers, Vanessa Proee, Harriette Saunders, Sylvia 

Stadmire, Esther Waltz, and Hale Zukas were present. 

 

4. Transportation Expenditure Plan (TEP) Election Outcome Discussion 

Naomi Armenta gave an overview of the TEP Election outcome, 

including its relation to Gap Grant Cycle 6 and the Implementation 

Guidelines. She noted that Measure BB passed and Alameda CTC 

staff will be working with the Direct Local Program Distribution 

recipients on updating the Master Program Funding Agreements and 

the Implementation Guidelines. She also noted that a Gap Grant 

Cycle 6 call for projects will not be released next year. Therefore, the 

current Gap Grant Cycle 5 recipients will be able to request an 

extension for another year of funding. 

 

Questions and feedback from PAPCO members: 

 It appears that the non-mandated programs, Union City and 

LAVTA are receiving less percentage of the Measure BB funding. 

Does this mean they are receiving fewer funds? No. Although the 

percentage of the overall funding for non-mandated programs, 

Page 2

http://www.regional-video.com/


 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150126\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20141124.docx  

 

Union City and LAVTA appears less, the amount of funding 

available is actually increasing because the sales tax measure is 

doubling the amount of funds generated. 

 Will there be more Gap Grant funds available to fund more 

programs? Yes, due to the increase in funding from the new sales 

tax measure, more funding may be available for Gap Grants. 

Staff will be discussing this in the coming months. 

 Is the money allocated to BART divided between maintenance 

and expansion? BART receives funding from several sources in 

the new sales tax measure. They are funded for specific capital 

projects identified in the 2014 TEP and receive funding for East 

Bay Paratransit. 

 

5. FY 2015/16 Proposed Funding Formula 

Cathleen Sullivan gave an update on the FY 15-16 proposed funding 

formula. She gave a presentation on the background of the Measure 

B funds for specialized transportation for seniors and people with 

disabilities and its current distribution. She then facilitated a discussion 

regarding potential changes to the current funding formula and 

presented staff recommendations and potential next steps. 

 

Questions and feedback from PAPCO members: 

 Members expressed interest in adding American Community 

Survey (ACS) data to the funding formula. 

 Members would like to see the relevant questions that are asked 

through the ACS and what the demographic of the survey 

respondents was. Staff noted that the ACS questions related to 

disability are in the memo on page 14 of the meeting packet. 

Additional information is also available on the ACS handout. 

 What is the sample size for the ACS data? The sample size is 

based on cities with populations of 60,000 or more people. 

 Members expressed support for the continuation of the 

weighting of the population over 80 in the formula. 

 A member asked if since we are now adding disability data to 

the funding formula and we have been using the 80+ 

demographic as a proxy for disability, we are potentially over 

counting a certain population of people? 

Page 3



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150126\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20141124.docx  

 

 A member suggested lowering the weighting of the population 

over 80 in the formula to 0.5 or 0.75 instead of 1.5. 

 Members expressed interest in replacing the 2010 Census 

population data with estimates from ACS. 

 A member expressed concern that the discussion is happening in 

a vacuum and members are not able to see the actual effects 

of these changes. Staff referred members back to the memo in 

the agenda packet for more information on the percentage 

difference and potential impacts of these changes. 

 

Hale Zukas moved to add the ACS disability data to the funding 

formula. Jonah Markowitz seconded the motion. The motion passed 

(12-0-1; Member Michelle Rousey abstained). 

 

Harriette Saunders moved to keep the weighting of the population 

over 80. Herb Hastings seconded the motion. The motion passed (9-3-

1; Members Shawn Costello, Vanessa Proee and Hale Zukas opposed; 

Member Michelle Rousey abstained). 

 

Herb Hastings moved to use the estimates from ACS instead of the 

2010 Census population data. Harriette Saunders seconded the 

motion. The motion passed (12-0-1; Member Michelle Rousey 

abstained). 

 

Herb Hastings moved to approve the formula for the same length of 

time as the Master Program Funding Agreements, with annual 

updates of ACS data. Vanessa Proee seconded the motion. The 

motion passed (12-0-1; Member Michelle Rousey abstained). 

 

Herb Hastings moved to use the same formula from Measure B to 

distribute Measure BB funding. Sandra Johnson-Simon seconded the 

motion. The motion passed (12-0-1; Member Michelle Rousey 

abstained). 

 

Jonah Markowitz moved to use the same population data source to 

distribute money to the four different planning areas for Measure BB 

funding. Harriette Saunders seconded the motion. The motion passed 

(12-0-1; Member Michelle Rousey abstained). 

Page 4



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150126\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20141124.docx  

 

 

Members Shawn Costello, Herb Hastings, Sandra Johnson-Simon, 

Jonah Markowitz, Carolyn Orr, Suzanne Ortt, Sharon Powers, Vanessa 

Proee, Michelle Rousey, Harriette Saunders, Sylvia Stadmire, Esther 

Waltz, and Hale Zukas were present. 

 

6. East Bay Paratransit Report 

Rashida Kamara, East Bay Paratransit (EBP) General Manager, gave a 

status report on EBP’s ridership and recent broker office activities. 

 

Questions and feedback from PAPCO members: 

 With medical facilities that close after 5 p.m., what can EBP do to 

better accommodate trips that happen later in the evening? 

Customer Response clerks in the office talk to consumers who 

book later rides and discuss with them methods to make sure 

they successfully connect with the drivers. EBP conducts various 

outreach efforts to address issues like this. 

 

7. Member Reports on PAPCO Mission, Roles, and Responsibilities 

Implementation 

Michelle Rousey is taking a course at Laney College and her final 

project is displayed in the district offices on campus. More information 

is available on the flyer. 

 

Sylvia Stadmire encouraged members to ride the Oakland Airport 

Connector. 

 

Jonah Markowitz reported back on the Easy Does It (EDI) fundraiser 

and noted that even if people did not attend they can still contribute 

to EDI financially. 

 

8. Committee Reports (Verbal) 

 

8.1. East Bay Paratransit Service Review Advisory Committee (SRAC) 

Sharon Powers noted that emergency preparedness was 

discussed at the last meeting and she passed around the 

emergency preparedness kit that she received from East Bay 

Page 5



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150126\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20141124.docx  

 

Paratransit. The next SRAC meeting will take place on Tuesday, 

January 6th. 

 

8.2. Citizens Watchdog Committee (CWC) 

Herb Hastings reported that the annual audit and the compliance 

reporting process were discussed at the last meeting. Members 

also discussed the audit report outreach efforts. The next CWC 

meeting will take place on Monday, January 12th.  

 

9. ADA Mandated Program and Policy Reports 

PAPCO members were asked to review these items in their packets.  

 

10. Information Items 

 

10.1. Mobility Management – Assistive Technology Resources 

Naomi Armenta reviewed the mobility management 

attachment in the packet as well as the handouts. 

 

10.2. Outreach Update 

Krystle Pasco gave an update on the following outreach 

events: 

 2/4/15 – Transition Information Night, Fremont Teen Senior 

from 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. 

 

10.3. 2014 Annual Mobility Workshop Update 

Terra Curtis gave an update on the Mobility Workshop 

newsletter. She noted that the newsletter will be available for 

distribution very shortly. She also discussed some of the results 

from the survey and noted that attendees expressed interest in 

more opportunities for discussion at future Mobility Workshops. 

 

Shawn Costello expressed interest in being a panelist or 

presenter at next year’s Mobility Workshop.  

 

10.4. Gap Grant Cycle 5 Progress Reports Update 

Naomi Armenta noted that there is an attachment in the 

meeting agenda packet with answers to the follow up 

questions from the Gap Grant Cycle 5 progress reports that 

Page 6



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150126\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20141124.docx  

 

were requested by several PAPCO members at the last 

meeting. 

 

10.5. Other Staff Updates 

Naomi Armenta reviewed the additional handouts.  

 

Jacki Taylor announced that Matt Todd is no longer with the 

Alameda CTC. His last day was November 15th but he wanted 

to share that he enjoyed working with PAPCO. 

 

There will also be an Alameda CTC Open House on Thursday, 

December 4th at 3:00 p.m. Everyone is invited to attend. 

 

11. Draft Agenda Items for January 26, 2015 PAPCO Meeting 

11.1. Implementation Guidelines Discussion 

11.2. 2014 Paratransit Outreach Summary Report 

11.3. Gap Grant Extension Update 

11.4. Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority (LAVTA) Quarterly 

Report 

11.5. Gap Grant Cycle 5 Program Report: Tri-City Volunteer Driver 

Programs 

11.6. Gap Grant Cycle 5 Program Report: Rides for Seniors 

 

12. Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 3:30 p.m. The next PAPCO meeting is 

scheduled for January 26, 2015 at Alameda CTC’s offices located at 

1111 Broadway, Suite 800, in Oakland. 

Page 7



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank. 

Page 8



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150126\4_Implementation_Guidelines_Memo_20150126.docx 
 

Memorandum 4 

 

DATE: January 20, 2015 

SUBJECT: Implementation Guidelines – Special Transportation 

for Seniors and People with Disabilities Program 

RECOMMENDATION: Provide input on draft revisions of the 

Implementation Guidelines for FY15-16 

 

Summary 

The Implementation Guidelines for the Special Transportation for 

Seniors and People with Disabilities (Paratransit) Program are 

periodically reviewed and updated. The Paratransit Advisory and 

Planning Committee (PAPCO) is requested to review and provide input 

to the proposed revisions for FY 2015-16. The proposed revisions are 

summarized in Attachment B and are based on Paratransit Technical 

Advisory Committee (ParaTAC) and staff input.  The PAPCO and 

ParaTAC will meet jointly on February 23, 2015 to finalize a 

recommendation for the Commission.  The Commission will receive the 

recommendation on February 26, 2015. 

Background 

The Implementation Guidelines for the Special Transportation for 

Seniors and People with Disabilities (Paratransit) Program identify the 

types of services that are eligible to be funded with Alameda County 

Measure B (2000) and Vehicle Registration Fee (VRF, 2010) revenues. 

The Implementation Guidelines were originally adopted by the 

Commission on December 16, 2011 and incorporated into the Master 

Program Funding Agreements (MPFA) for Measure B and VRF revenues. 

Minor revisions to the Guidelines were adopted on January 24, 2013 

and January 23, 2014. After approval by the Commission in February, 

Page 9



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150126\4_Implementation_Guidelines_Memo_20150126.docx 
 

the revised Implementation Guidelines will replace the referenced 

Implementation Guidelines in the current MPFAs starting FY 2015-16. A 

separate one-year MPFA for Measure BB is under development and will 

apply the Implementation Guidelines to Measure BB revenues. 

The eligible service types identified in the Implementation Guidelines 

include: 

 ADA Paratransit 

 Door-to-Door Service  

 Taxi Subsidy 

 Specialized Accessible Van 

 Accessible Shuttles 

 Group Trips 

 Volunteer Drivers 

 Mobility Management and/or Travel Training 

 Scholarship/Subsidized Fare Programs 

 Capital Expenditures 

A summary of the distribution of these services within the County in FY 

2014-15 is included as Attachment A. 

Proposed Revisions 

The Paratransit Technical Advisory Committee (ParaTAC) reviewed and 

discussed the Implementation Guidelines at the December 9, 2014 and 

January 13, 2015 meetings.  The proposed revisions are to take effect 

starting in FY 2015/16 and are generally intended as helpful 

clarifications.  They are summarized below: 

 Explicitly state that “importance” of destinations should be 

determined by the consumer 

 Add a line and short description for Capital Expenditures 

 Explicitly state that city programs can choose to serve people 

with disabilities under the age of 18 

Page 10



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150126\4_Implementation_Guidelines_Memo_20150126.docx 
 

 Specify how cities can determine eligibility due to disability, and 

give cities discretion in establishing temporary eligibility 

 Note that cities can serve any five days of the week for door-to-

door and don’t have to accept reservations on holidays 

 Remove language saying that cities cannot impose limitations 

based on trip purpose 

 Remove language describing taxi service as a premium versus 

regular service 

 State that where possible, taxi services should try to fulfill requests 

for same-day accessible trips 

 Clarify description of City-based Specialized Accessible Van 

Service and notes that when possible, a priority for this service 

should be fulfilling requests for same-day accessible trips 

 State that volunteer driver programs can have an escort 

component to accompany a consumer on any service eligible for 

paratransit funding 

 Specify that volunteer mileage reimbursement should not exceed 

Federal General Services Administration (Privately Owned 

Vehicle) Mileage Reimbursement Rates 

 Add fixed-route transit fares to eligibility for scholarship services 

 Broaden low income requirements and place more at the 

discretion of program sponsors 

 State that Program sponsors can propose other services or 

purposes for scholarship to be considered by PAPCO and the 

Alameda CTC 

 Clarify description of Meal Delivery funding 

These revisions and other edits are included in the redline document 

included as Attachment B. Staff requests that members review the 

proposed revisions and be prepared to discuss on January 26th. 

Fiscal Impact  

There is no fiscal impact.  

 

Page 11



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150126\4_Implementation_Guidelines_Memo_20150126.docx 
 

Attachments 

A. FY 2014-15 Distribution of Services within County 

B. Draft Implementation Guidelines 

Staff Contact  

Naomi Armenta, Paratransit Coordinator 

Jacki Taylor, Program Analyst 

 

Page 12

mailto:narmenta@alamedactc.org
mailto:jtaylor@alamedactc.org


 S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
P

ro
vi

d
ed

 F
Y

 2
01

4-
15

 

 

Ju
ri

sd
ic

ti
o

n
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 
A

re
a

 

C
it

y-
b

as
ed

 
D

o
o

r-
to

-
D

o
o

r 
T

ax
i 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 

S
p

ec
ia

liz
ed

 
V

an
 

M
R

T
IP

 

A
cc

es
si

b
le

 
F

ix
ed

-
R

o
u

te
 

S
h

u
tt

le
 

G
ro

u
p

 
T

ri
p

s 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 

V
o

lu
n

te
er

 
D

ri
ve

r 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 

M
o

b
ili

ty
 

M
g

m
t/

 
T

ra
ve

l 
T

ra
in

in
g

 

S
ch

o
la

r-
sh

ip
/ 

S
u

b
si

d
iz

ed
 

F
ar

e 
M

ea
l 

D
el

iv
er

y
 

A
D

A
 

P
ar

at
ra

n
si

t 

C
IT

Y
 

A
la

m
ed

a 
N

or
th

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
lb

an
y 

N
or

th
 

  
p 

  
  

  
p 

g 
g 

  
  

  

B
er

ke
le

y 
N

or
th

 
. 

p 
p 

p 
  

. 
g 

g 
. 

  
  

D
u

b
lin

 
E

as
t 

  
g 

  
  

  
  

g 
  

  
  

. 

E
m

er
yv

ill
e 

N
or

th
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

F
re

m
o

n
t 

S
ou

th
 

p 
g 

  
  

  
p 

g 
g 

  
p 

  

H
ay

w
ar

d
 

C
en

tr
al

 
p 

g 
p 

  
  

p 
  

g 
  

p 
  

L
iv

er
m

o
re

 
E

as
t 

  
g 

  
  

  
  

g 
  

  
  

. 

N
ew

ar
k 

S
ou

th
 

p 
g 

  
  

  
  

g 
g 

  
p 

  

O
ak

la
n

d
/ 

P
ie

d
m

o
n

t 
N

or
th

 
p 

p 
p 

  
  

  
g 

g 
  

  
  

P
le

as
an

to
n

 
E

as
t 

. 
  

  
  

g 
  

g 
g 

  
  

. 

S
an

 L
ea

n
d

ro
 

C
en

tr
al

 
  

g 
  

  
p 

  
  

g 
  

  
  

T
R

A
N

S
IT

 A
G

E
N

C
Y

 

L
A

V
T

A
 

E
as

t 
  

g 
  

  
  

  
g 

  
  

  
. 

U
n

io
n

 C
it

y 
S

ou
th

 
  

g 
  

  
  

  
g 

g 
  

  
. 

E
B

P
 

(A
C

/B
A

R
T

) 

N
or

th
, 

C
en

tr
al

, 
S

ou
th

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
D

ire
ct

 lo
ca

l p
ro

gr
am

 d
is

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 

p 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

G
ra

nt
-f

un
de

d 
 

g 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

O
th

er
 fu

nd
in

g 
 

. 
 

* 
S

o
m

e 
p

ro
g

ra
m

s 
h

av
e 

m
ix

ed
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 s

o
u

rc
es

, t
h

e 
b

o
x 

sh
ad

in
g

 r
ef

le
ct

s 
m

aj
o

ri
ty

 
 

4A

Page 13



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank. 

Page 14



NOVEMBER 2013FY 2015/16 DRAFT REVISIONS January 2015                      
  

Page | 1 

 

Implementation Guidelines – Special 
Transportation for Seniors and People with 
Disabilities Program 
These guidelines lay out the service types that are eligible to be 
funded with Alameda County Measure B (2000) and Vehicle 
Registration Fee (VRF, 2010) revenues under the Special 
Transportation for Seniors and People with Disabilities Program 
(Paratransit). All programs funded partially or in their entirety 
through Measure B or the VRFthese sources, including ADA-
mandated paratransit services, city-based non-mandated 
programs, and discretionary grant funded projects, must abide by 
the following requirements for each type of paratransit service. 
Programs must be in full compliance with these guidelines by the 
end of fiscal year 2012-2013.  

Fund recipients are able to select which of these service types are 
most appropriate for their community to meet the needs of seniors 
and people with disabilities. Overall, all programs should be 
designed to enhance quality of life for seniors and people with 
disabilities by offering accessible, affordable, and convenient 
transportation options to reach major medical facilities, grocery 
stores and other important travel destinations to meet life needs. 
Ultimately, whether a destination is “important” should be 
determined by the consumer. 

The chart below summarizes the eligible service types and their 
basic customer experience parameters; this is followed by more 
detailed descriptions of each. 

Service Timing Accessibility Origins/ 
Destinations 

Eligible Population 

ADA 
Paratransit 

Pre-
scheduled 

Accessible Origin-to-
Destination 

People with 
disabilities unable 
to ride fixed route 
transit 

4B

Page 15



Page | 2 

Service Timing Accessibility 
Origins/ 

Destinations 
Eligible Population 

Door-to-Door 
Service  

Pre-
scheduled Accessible Origin-to-

Destination 

People with 
disabilities unable 
to ride fixed route 
transit and 
seniors 

Taxi Subsidy Same Day Varies Origin-to-
Destination 

Seniors and 
people with 
disabilities 

Specialized 
Accessible Van 

Pre-
scheduled 
& Same 
Day 

Accessible  Origin-to-
Destination 

People with 
disabilities using 
mobility devices 
that require lift- or 
ramp-equipped 
vehicles 

Accessible 
Shuttles 

Fixed 
Schedule  Accessible Fixed or 

Flexed Route 

Seniors and 
people with 
disabilities 

Group Trips Pre-
scheduled Varies 

Round Trip 
Origin-to-
Destination 

Seniors and 
people with 
disabilities 

Volunteer 
Drivers 

Pre-
scheduled 

Generally Not 
Accessible 

Origin-to-
Destination 

Vulnerable 
populations with 
special needs, 
e.g. requiring 
door-through-door 
service or escort 

Mobility 
Management 
and/or Travel 
Training 

N/A N/A N/A 
Seniors and 
people with 
disabilities 

Scholarship/ 
Subsidized 
Fare Programs  

N/A N/A N/A 
Seniors and 
people with 
disabilities 

Page 16



Page | 3 

Service Timing Accessibility 
Origins/ 

Destinations 
Eligible Population 

Capital 
Expenditures 

N/A Accessible N/A 
Seniors and 
people with 
disabilities 

Note on ADA Mandated Paratransit: Programs mandated by the 
American’s with Disabilities Act are implemented and administered 
according to federal guidelines that may supersede these 
guidelines; however all ADA-mandated programs funded through 
Measure B or the VRF are subject to the terms of the Master 
Programs Funding Agreement. 

Interim Service for Consumers Awaiting ADA Certification: At 
the request of a health care provider, or ADA provider, city-based 
programs must provide interim service through the programs listed 
below to consumers awaiting ADA certification.  Service must be 
provided within three business days of receipt of application.   

Note on Capital Expenditures: Any capital expenditures within 
the eligible service categories must be consistent with the 
objectives of the Alameda CTC Special Transportation for Seniors 
and Peoples with Disabilities (Paratransit) Program described 
above and will be subject to review by Alameda CTC. 

 

 

  

Page 17



Page | 4 

City-based Door-to-Door Service Guidelines 

Service 
Description 

City-based door-to-door services provide pre-scheduled, 
accessible, door-to-door trips.  Some programs allow same 
day reservations on a space-available basis.  They provide a 
similar level of service to mandated ADA services.  These 
services are designed to fill gaps that are not met by ADA-
mandated providers and/or relieve ADA-mandated providers 
of some trips.   
This service type does not include taxi subsidies which are 
discussed below.  

Eligible 
Population 

Eligible Populations include: 
1. People 18 and above with disabilities who are unable 

to use fixed route services or . Cities may, at their 
discretion, also provide services to consumers with 
disabilities under the age of 18, and 

Seniors 80 years or older without proof of a disability. 
2.  Cities may provide services to consumers who are 

younger than age 80, but not younger than 70 years 
old. 

Cities may continue to offer “grandfathered” eligibility to 
program registrants below 70 years old who have used the 
program regularly in the prior fiscal yearFY 11/12, as long as 
it does not impinge on the City’s ability to meet the minimum 
requirements of the Implementation Guidelines. 
Program sponsors may use either ADA eligibility, as 
established by ADA-mandated providers (incl. East Bay 
Paratransit, LAVTA, Union City Transit),) or the Alameda 
County City-Based Paratransit Services Medical Statement 
Form, as proof of disability. Program sponsors may, at their 
discretion, also offer temporary eligibility due to disability. 

Time & Days of 
Service 

At a minimum, service must be available any five days per 
week between the hours of 8 am and 5 pm (excluding 
holidays). 
At a minimum, programs shouldmust accept reservations 
between the hours of 89 am and 5 pm Monday – Friday 
(excluding holidays). 

Page 18



Page | 5 

City-based Door-to-Door Service Guidelines 

Fare (Cost to 
Customer) 

Fares for pre-scheduled service should not exceed local ADA 
paratransit fares, but can be lower, and can be equated to 
distance.  Higher fares can be charged for “premium” same-
day service. 

Other Door-to-Door programs must demonstrate that they are 
providing trips at an equal or lower cost than the ADA-
mandated provider on a cost per trip and cost per hour basis. 
Programs cannot impose limitations based on trip purpose, 
but canmay impose per person trip limits to control program 
resourcesdue to budgetary constraints.  

 

  

Taxi Subsidy ServiceProgram Guidelines 

Service 
Description 

Taxis provide curb-to-curb service that can be scheduled on a 
same-day basis. They charge riders on a distance/time basis 
using a meter.  Taxi subsidy programs allow eligible consumers 
to use taxis at a reduced fare by reimbursing consumers a 
percentage of the fare or by providing some fare medium, e.g. 
scrip or vouchers, which can be used to cover a portion of the 
fare.   These programs are intended for situations when 
consumers cannot make their trip on a pre-scheduled basis.  
This is meant to be a “premium” safety net service, not a 
routine service to be used on a daily basis.    
The availability of accessible taxi cabs varies by geographical 
area and taxi provider, but programs should expand availability 
of accessible taxi cabs where possible in order to fulfill requests 
for same-day accessible trips. 

Page 19



Page | 6 

Taxi Subsidy ServiceProgram Guidelines 

Eligible 
Population 

Eligible Populations include: 
1. People 18 and above with disabilities who are unable to 

use fixed route services or . Cities may, at their 
discretion, also provide services to consumers with 
disabilities under the age of 18, and 

Seniors 80 years or older without proof of a disability. 
1.2.  Cities may provide services to consumers who are 

younger than age 80, but not younger than 70 years old. 
Cities may continue to offer “grandfathered” eligibility to 
program registrants below 70 years old who have used the 
program regularly in FY 11/12the prior fiscal year , as long as it 
does not impinge on the City’s ability to meet the minimum 
requirements of the Implementation Guidelines. 
Program sponsors may use either ADA eligibility, as 
established by ADA-mandated providers (incl. East Bay 
Paratransit, LAVTA, Union City Transit),) or the Alameda 
County City-Based Paratransit Services Medical Statement 
Form, as proof of disability. Program sponsors may, at their 
discretion, also offer temporary eligibility due to disability. 

Time & Days of 
Service  

24 hours per day/7 days per week 

Fare (Cost to 
Customer) 

At a minimum, programsPrograms must subsidize at least 50% 
of the taxi fare. 
Programs can impose a cap on total subsidy per person.  This 
can be accomplished through a maximum subsidy per trip, a 
limit on the number of vouchers/scrip (or other fare medium) 
per person, and/or a total monetary subsidy per person per 
year. 

 

  

Page 20



Page | 7 

City-based Specialized Accessible Van Service Guidelines 

Service 
Description 

Specialized Accessible van service provides accessible, 
door-to-door trips on a pre-scheduled or same-day basis. 
TheseThis service category is not intended to be as 
comprehensive as primary services are generally 
implemented as (i.e. ADA-mandated, City-based Door-to-
Door, or Taxi programs), but should be a complementary 
supplement to a program that does not meetin communities 
where critical needs for particular trips in accessible vehicles 
in certain communitiestrips are not being adequately met by 
the existing primary services.  Examples of unmet needs 
might be a taxi program without accessible vehicles or, 
medical trips for riders too frail towith dementia unable to 
safely take a shuttlean ADA-mandated trip, or trips outside of 
the ADA-mandated service area. When possible, a priority for 
this service should be fulfilling requests for same-day 
accessible trips. 
These programsThis service may make use of fare mediums 
such as scrip and vouchers to allow consumers to pay for 
rides.  

Eligible 
Population 

At discretion of program sponsor with local consumer input. 

Time & Days of 
Service 

At discretion of program sponsor with local consumer input. 

Fare (Cost to 
Customer) 

At discretion of program sponsor with local consumer input. 

Other Specialized Accessible van programs should providemust 
demonstrate that they are providing trips at an equal or lower 
cost to the provider than the ADA-mandated provider on a 
cost per trip and cost per hour basis. 

 

  

Page 21



Page | 8 

City Accessible Shuttle Service Guidelines 

Service Description Shuttles are accessible vehicles that operate on a fixed, 
deviated, or flex-fixed route and schedule.  They serve 
common trip origins and destinations visited by eligible 
consumers.  Common trip origins and destinations are:, 
e.g. senior centers, medical facilities, grocery stores, 
BART stations,and other transit stations, community 
centers, commercial districts, and post offices.   
Shuttles should be designed to supplement existing fixed 
route transit services.  Routes should not necessarily be 
designed for fast travel, but to get as close as possible to 
destinations of interest, oftensuch as going into parking 
lots or up to the front entrance of a senior living facility.  
Shuttles allow for more flexibility than pre-scheduled 
paratransit service, and are more likelyoften designed to 
serve active seniors who do not drive andbut are not ADA 
paratransit registrants. 

Eligible Population Shuttles should be designed to appeal to older people, 
but can be made open to the general public.   

Time and Days of 
Service 

At discretion of program sponsor with local consumer 
input. 

Fare (Cost to 
Customer) 

Fares should notAt discretion of program sponsor, but 
cannot exceed local ADA paratransit fares, but can. 
Fares may be lower, and can be equated toscaled based 
on distance. 

Cost of Service By end of FY12/13, the second fiscal year of service, the 
City’s cost per one-way person trip must becannot 
exceed $20 or lower, including transportation and direct 
administrative costs.   

Page 22



Page | 9 

Other Shuttles are required to coordinate with the local fixed 
route transit provider. 
Shuttle routes and schedules should be designed with 
input from the senior and disabled communities and any 
new shuttle plan must be submitted to the Alameda CTC 
for review prior to requesting funding to ensure effective 
design. 
Deviations and flag stops are permitted at discretion of 
program sponsor.   

 

Group Trips Service Guidelines 

Service Description Group trips are round-trip rides for pre-plannedscheduled 
outings or to attend specific events or go to specific 
destinations for fixed amounts of time, e.g., including 
shopping trips, sporting events, orand community health 
fairs. Trips usually These trips are specifically designed 
to serve the needs of seniors and people with disabilities 
and typically originate from a senior center or housing 
facility and are generally provided in accessible vans and 
other vehicle types or combinations thereof.  These trips 
are specifically designed to serve the needs of seniors 
and people with disabilities.     

Eligible Population At discretion of program sponsor.   

Time and Days of 
Service 

Group trips must begin and end on the same day. 

Fare (Cost to 
Customer) 

At discretion of program sponsor.   

Other Programs can impose mileage limitations to control 
program costs.  

 

  

Page 23



Page | 10 

Volunteer Driver Service Guidelines 

Service Description Volunteer driver services are pre-scheduled, door-
through-door services that are generallytypically not 
accessible.  These programs rely on volunteers to drive 
eligible consumers for critical trip needs, such as medical 
trips.  This service type meets a key mobility gap by 
serving door-through-door trips for more vulnerable 
populations. This is a complementary gap-filling service. 
and should complement existing primary services (i.e. 
ADA-mandated, City-based Door-to-Door, or Taxi). 
Volunteer driver programs may also have an escort 
component where volunteers accompany consumers, 
who on any service eligible for paratransit funding, when 
they are unable to travel in a private vehicle, on ADA 
trips.   

Eligible Population At discretion of program sponsor.  

Time and Days of 
Service 

At discretion of program sponsor.  

Fare (Cost to 
Customer) 

At discretion of program sponsor. 

Other Program sponsors can use Measure B funds to pay for 
volunteer mileage reimbursement purposes (not to 
exceed Federal General Services Administration 
(Privately Owned Vehicle) Mileage Reimbursement 
Rates) or an equivalent financial incentive for volunteers 
and/or. 
Program sponsors can also use funds for administrative 
purposes. 

 

Page 24



Page | 11 

Mobility Management and/or Travel Training Service Guidelines 

Service Description Mobility management and/orservices cover a wide range 
of activities, such as travel training, escorted companion 
services, coordinated services, trip planning, and 
brokerage.  Mobility management activities often include 
education and outreach which play an important role in 
ensuring that people use the “right” service for each trip, 
e.g. using EBP from Fremont to Berkeley for an event, 
using a taxi voucher for a same-day semi-emergency 
doctor visit, and requesting help from a volunteer driver 
or group trips service for grocery shopping.  Mobility 
management covers a wide range of activities, such as 
travel training, escorted companion services, coordinated 
services, trip planning, and brokerage.   

Eligible Population At discretion of program sponsor.  

Time and Days of 
Service 

At discretion of program sponsor.  

Fare (Cost to 
Customer) 

N/A 

Other Programs must specify a well-defined set of activities that 
will be undertaken in aThe planned mobility management 
and/or travel training program. 
The mobility management plan or travel training 
programprograms must be submitted to the Alameda 
CTC for review prior to requesting funding to ensure 
effective design. and must specify a well-defined set of 
activities. 
 

 

  

Page 25



Page | 12 

Scholarship/Subsidized Fare Program Guidelines 

Service Description Scholarship or Subsidized Fare Programs can subsidize 
any service eligible for paratransit funding and/or fixed-
route transit for customers who are low-income and can 
demonstrate financial need. 

Eligible Population Subsidies can be offered to low-income consumers with 
demonstrated financial need; these consumers must also 
meet the eligibility  who are currently eligible for an 
Alameda County ADA-mandated or city-based paratransit 
program.  
Low income requirements are at discretion of the 
serviceprogram sponsors, but the requirement for which 
the subsidy is being offered. 
Lowhousehold income should be considered 30between 
0-50% AMI (area median income) or lower.). 

Time and Days of 
Service 

N/A  

Fare (Cost to 
Customer) 

N/A 

Other Program sponsors must describe their low-income 
requirements and how financial means testingthey will be 
undertakendetermine and verify eligibility. 
If program sponsors include subsidized East Bay 
Paratransit (EBP) tickets in this program, no more than 
3% of their direct locala program distribution funds, or 
discretionary funds,sponsor’s Alameda CTC distributed 
funding may be used for these tickets. Programs may 
usethe ticket subsidy.  
Program sponsors can propose other fundsservices or 
purposes for scholarship to purchase these tickets in 
excess of the 3% direct local program distributions funds 
or discretionary fundsbe considered by PAPCO and the 
Alameda CTC. 

 

Page 26



Page | 13 

Meal Delivery ServiceFunding Guidelines 

Service Description Meal Delivery ProgramsFunding programs provide 
funding to programs that deliver meals to the homes of 
individuals who are transportation 
disadvantagedgenerally too frail to travel outside to 
congregate meal sites.  Although this provides access to 
life sustaining needs for seniors and people with 
disabilities, it is not a direct transportation expense.   

Eligible Population For currently operating programs, at discretion of 
program sponsor.  

Time and Days of 
Service 

For currently operating programs, at discretion of 
program sponsor. 

Fare (Cost to 
Customer) 

For currently operating programs, at discretion of 
program sponsor. 

Other Currently operating funding programs canmay continue to 
use Measure B funds for these service costs, but new 
meal delivery services cannotfunding programs may not 
be established.   

 

 

Page 27



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank. 

Page 28



 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150126\8.1_PAPCO_Calendar_of_Events_20150126.docx  

 

PAPCO Calendar of Events for  
January through February 2015  8.1 

 

Full Committee Meetings 

• Regular ParaTAC monthly meeting:  

Tuesday, January 13, 2015, 9:30 to 11:30 a.m., Alameda CTC 

• Regular PAPCO monthly meeting: 

Monday, January 26, 2015, 1 to 3:30 p.m., Alameda CTC 

• Regular PAPCO/Joint monthly meeting:  

Monday, February 23, 2015, 1 to 4 p.m., Alameda CTC 

 

Outreach 

Date Event Name Location Time 

2/4/15 Transition 

Information 

Night 

Fremont Teen Center, 39770 

Paseo Padre Parkway, Fremont, 

CA  94538 

6:00 p.m. – 

8:00 p.m. 

PAPCO members will be notified of other events as they are scheduled. 

For more information about outreach events or to sign up to attend, 

please call Krystle Pasco at (510) 208-7467. 

Page 29



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank. 

Page 30



 
 

 P
A

P
C

O
 W

o
rk

 P
la

n
 f

o
r 

F
is

c
a

l 
Y

e
a

r 
2

0
1

4
-1

5
 

Th
e

 P
A

P
C

O
 W

o
rk

 P
la

n
 r

e
fl
e

c
ts

 r
e

sp
o

n
si

b
ili

ti
e

s 
a

ss
ig

n
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 2
0

0
0

 M
e

a
su

re
 B

 T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 P

la
n

 (
TE

P
),

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
, 
a

n
d

 P
A

P
C

O
 B

y
la

w
s.

  
A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

TC
 s

ta
ff

 u
p

d
a

te
s 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 W

o
rk

 P
la

n
 m

o
n

th
ly

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 P
A

P
C

O
 C

h
a

ir
 o

r 
V

ic
e

 C
h

a
ir
 r

e
p

o
rt

s 
to

 t
h

e
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

TC
 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 m
o

n
th

ly
 o

n
 P

A
P

C
O

 a
c

ti
v
it
ie

s.
 

 

To
p

ic
: 
P
A

P
C

O
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 O
u

tr
e

a
c

h
 

G
o

a
l:
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 P
A

P
C

O
’s

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
s 

a
n

 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 a
n

d
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 a
d

v
is

o
ry

 

c
o

m
m

it
te

e
; 
a

c
c

o
m

p
lis

h
 o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 i
n

 a
 v

a
ri
e

ty
 o

f 
w

a
y

s 
in

 a
ll
 a

re
a

s 
o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
ty

 

 A
c

ti
o

n
s 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

In
-P

ro
g

re
ss

 

A
ll 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

 t
o

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 in

 a
t 

le
a

st
 o

n
e

 O
u

tr
e

a
c

h
 a

c
ti
v

it
y
 (

w
ri
te

 a
n

 

a
rt

ic
le

, 
sp

e
a

k
 a

t 
a

n
o

th
e

r 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
, 
v

is
it
 a

 s
e

n
io

r 
c

e
n

te
r,

 o
r 

a
tt

e
n

d
 a

n
 

e
v

e
n

t)
 

 
x
 

A
ss

is
t 

in
 p

u
b

lic
iz

in
g

 t
h

e
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

TC
’s

 s
p

e
c

ia
l 
tr

a
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 A

c
c

e
ss

 A
la

m
e

d
a

 b
o

o
k
le

t 
a

n
d

 

A
c

c
e

ss
A

la
m

e
d

a
.o

rg
 w

e
b

si
te

 

 
x
 

A
ss

is
t 

in
 d

is
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 T

E
P

 m
a

te
ri
a

ls
  

x
 

 

M
o

n
it
o

r 
P

A
P

C
O

 a
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 v
a

c
a

n
c

ie
s 

 
x
 

A
ss

is
t 

in
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 in

 A
n

n
u

a
l W

o
rk

sh
o

p
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
4
 

x
 

 

A
sk

 s
ta

ff
 f

o
r 

a
ss

is
ta

n
c

e
 i
n

 d
ra

ft
in

g
 t

a
lk

in
g

 p
o

in
ts

 o
r 

a
rt

ic
le

s,
 o

r 
o

b
ta

in
in

g
 

o
u

tr
e

a
c

h
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 

 
x
 

 
 

 
 

8.2

Page 31



 

To
p

ic
: 

M
o

b
il
it
y

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

G
o

a
l:
 L

e
a

rn
 a

b
o

u
t 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o

 A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
o

u
n

ty
’s

 o
n

g
o

in
g

 M
o

b
il
it
y

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

e
ff
o

rt
s 

 A
c

ti
o

n
s 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

In
-P

ro
g

re
ss

 

P
ro

v
id

e
 in

p
u

t 
o

n
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

o
u

n
ty

’s
 M

o
b

ili
ty

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

e
ff

o
rt

s 
 

x
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 M
o

b
ili

ty
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
v

id
e

d
 in

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 

p
a

c
k
e

t 

 
x
 

 
 

 
   

To
p

ic
: 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 P
o

li
c

y
 O

v
e

rs
ig

h
t 

G
o

a
l:
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 p
o

li
c

y
 o

v
e

rs
ig

h
t 

o
v

e
r 

p
a

ss
-t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

n
d

 g
ra

n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
s 

 A
c

ti
o

n
s 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

In
-P

ro
g

re
ss

 

R
e

c
e

iv
e

 G
a

p
 G

ra
n

t 
C

y
c

le
 5

 P
ro

g
re

ss
 R

e
p

o
rt

s 
st

a
tu

s 

O
c

to
b

e
r 

M
a

rc
h

 

 x
 

  

R
e

c
e

iv
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
s 

fr
o

m
 G

a
p

 C
y
c

le
 5

 r
e

c
ip

ie
n

ts
 

 
x
 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 in

 d
is

c
u

ss
io

n
s 

o
n

 a
m

e
n

d
in

g
 I
m

p
le

m
e

n
ti
n

g
 G

u
id

e
lin

e
s 

 
 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 in

 d
is

c
u

ss
io

n
s 

o
n

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 f
o

rm
u

la
 a

n
d

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l T
E
P

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 
x
 

 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 in

 G
a

p
 G

ra
n

t 
C

y
c

le
 6

 C
a

ll 
 

 

R
e

c
e

iv
e

 a
n

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
u

p
d

a
te

 o
n

 t
h

e
 H

D
TS

 a
n

d
 W

S
B

TS
 p

ro
g

ra
m

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

Page 32



 

To
p

ic
: 

F
id

u
c

ia
ry

 O
v

e
rs

ig
h

t 

G
o

a
l:
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 f
id

u
c

ia
ry

 o
v

e
rs

ig
h

t 
o

v
e

r 
p

a
ss

-t
h

ro
u

g
h

 a
n

d
 g

ra
n

t 
fu

n
d

in
g

 

 A
c

ti
o

n
s 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

In
-P

ro
g

re
ss

 

R
e

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 m
a

k
e

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s 

o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

s 
fo

r 
G

a
p

 C
a

p
it
a

l 
o

r 

M
a

tc
h

in
g

 f
u

n
d

s 

 
x
 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 in

 5
3
1
0

 C
a

ll 
o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 a
n

d
 r

e
v

ie
w

  
x
 

 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 in

 a
 f

id
u

c
ia

ry
 t

ra
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 f

in
a

n
c

e
 s

u
b

c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
  

 
 

C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 e
v

a
lu

a
te

 p
a

ss
-t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

n
d

 g
ra

n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
s 

a
n

d
 

e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
s 

 
 

 
 

 
   

To
p

ic
: 

C
o

o
rd

in
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 L
o

c
a

l 
a

n
d

 R
e

g
io

n
a

l 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

G
o

a
l:
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

 w
it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

n
d

 r
e

g
io

n
a

l 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 o

n
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 e

ff
o

rt
s 

a
n

d
 p

o
li
c

y
 d

is
c

u
ss

io
n

s 

 A
c

ti
o

n
s 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

In
-P

ro
g

re
ss

 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 in

 jo
in

t 
d

is
c

u
ss

io
n

 w
it
h

 P
a

ra
TA

C
 a

t 
Jo

in
t 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s 

 

O
c

to
b

e
r 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 

A
p

ri
l 

 x
   

    

R
e

c
e

iv
e

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

su
m

m
a

ri
e

s 
o

f 
A

D
A

-m
a

n
d

a
te

d
 p

a
ra

tr
a

n
si

t 
a

d
v

is
o

ry
 

c
o

m
m

it
te

e
s’

 m
in

u
te

s 
a

n
d

 T
ra

n
si

t 
A

c
c

e
ss

 R
e

p
o

rt
s 

 
x
 

Page 33



To
p

ic
: 

C
o

o
rd

in
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 L
o

c
a

l 
a

n
d

 R
e

g
io

n
a

l 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 in

 o
th

e
r 

c
o

m
m

it
te

e
s 

(e
.g

. 
S
R

A
C

, 
W

A
A

C
, 
A

A
C

, 
C

it
y
 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

s,
 e

tc
.)

 a
n

d
 i
n

fo
rm

 C
h

a
ir
 a

n
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

s 

re
q

u
e

st
e

d
 

 
x
 

R
e

c
e

iv
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
s 

o
n

 M
TC

 a
n

d
 R

e
g

io
n

a
l i

ss
u

e
s/

e
v

e
n

ts
 

 
x
 

R
e

sp
o

n
d

 t
o

 s
ta

ff
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s 

o
n

 o
th

e
r 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s 
fo

r 
c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 

a
n

d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
  

 
 

 
 

 
   

To
p

ic
: 

C
u

st
o

m
e

r 
S
e

rv
ic

e
 

G
o

a
l:
 P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n

 d
ri
v

e
r 

tr
a

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
e

 a
s 

a
 r

e
so

u
rc

e
 t

o
 p

ro
v

id
e

rs
; 

a
n

d
 f

a
c

il
it
a

te
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 r
e

so
lu

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c

o
n

su
m

e
r 

c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 

 A
c

ti
o

n
s 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

In
-P

ro
g

re
ss

 

C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 b
e

 a
v

a
ila

b
le

 t
o

 a
ss

is
t 

in
 D

ri
v

e
r 

Tr
a

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 r
e

la
te

d
 it

e
m

s 

fo
r 

A
D

A
 p

ro
v

id
e

rs
, 
C

it
y
 p

ro
v

id
e

rs
, 
ta

xi
 p

ro
v

id
e

rs
, 
e

tc
. 

 
 

 
 

 
   

Page 34



 
 

 

PAPCO Appointments and  

Vacancies 
 

8.3 

 

Appointer Member 

 Alameda County  

Supervisor Scott Haggerty, D-1  Herb Hastings 

Supervisor Richard Valle, D-2  Tom Perez 

Supervisor Wilma Chan, D-3  Sylvia Stadmire 

Supervisor Nate Miley, D-4  Sandra Johnson Simon 

Supervisor Keith Carson, D-5  Will Scott 

 City of Alameda   Harriette Saunders 

 City of Albany  Jonah Markowitz 

 City of Berkeley  Vacant 

 City of Dublin  Shawn Costello 

 City of Emeryville  Joyce Jacobson 

 City of Fremont  Sharon Powers 

 City of Hayward  Vanessa Proee 

 City of Livermore  Vacant 

 City of Newark  Vacant 

 City of Oakland  Rev. Carolyn M. Orr 

 City of Piedmont  Vacant 

 City of Pleasanton  Carmen Rivera-Hendrickson 

 City of San Leandro  Vacant 

 City of Union City  Suzanne Ortt 

 AC Transit   Hale Zukas 

 BART  Michelle Rousey 

 LAVTA  Esther Waltz 

 Union City Transit  Larry Bunn 

 

Page 35



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank. 

Page 36



10.1

Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



W
hy

 p
la

n 
fo

r 
tr

an
sp

or
ta

ti
on

?
A

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
, a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
tr

an
sp

or
ta

ti
on

 is
 

ke
y 

to
 li

vi
ng

 a
 q

ua
lit

y 
lif

e 
th

at
 m

ee
ts

 y
ou

r 
pe

rs
on

al
, f

am
ily

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l n

ee
ds

. M
ak

in
g 

sm
ar

t 
tr

an
sp

or
ta

ti
on

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 h

el
ps

 y
ou

 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

co
nt

ro
l o

f y
ou

r 
da

ily
 li

fe
, s

o 
yo

u 
ca

n 
ta

ke
 c

ar
e 

of
 y

ou
r 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 r

em
ai

n 
ac

ti
ve

 in
 y

ou
r 

co
m

m
un

it
y.

n
 T

ra
n

sp
or

ta
ti

on
 is

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 f

or
 d

ai
ly

 
li

vi
n

g 
ac

ti
vi

ti
es

, s
u

ch
 a

s:

n
 G

ro
ce

ry
 s

h
op

pi
n

g 
an

d 
ru

n
n

in
g 

er
ra

n
ds

n
 V

is
it

in
g 

fa
m

il
y 

an
d 

fr
ie

n
ds

n
 G

oi
n

g 
ou

t,
 r

ec
re

at
io

n
, a

n
d 

en
te

rt
ai

n
m

en
t

n
 A

tt
en

di
n

g 
w

or
sh

ip
 s

er
vi

ce
s

n
 G

et
ti

n
g 

to
 m

ed
ic

al
 a

pp
oi

n
tm

en
ts

n
 P

la
n

n
in

g 
fo

r 
tr

an
sp

or
ta

ti
on

 f
ee

s 
in

 
ad

va
n

ce
 h

el
ps

 y
ou

 s
ta

y 
w

it
h

in
 y

ou
r 

bu
dg

et
 a

n
d 

m
ee

t 
yo

u
r 

ba
si

c 
n

ee
ds

.

n
 P

la
n

n
in

g 
ah

ea
d 

h
el

ps
 a

ss
u

re
 y

ou
 

h
av

e 
so

m
eo

n
e 

to
 t

ra
ve

l w
it

h
 y

ou
, i

f 
n

ec
es

sa
ry

. 

n
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
 g

iv
e 

fa
m

il
y 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
ca

re
gi

ve
rs

 a
 b

re
ak

, i
f n

ee
de

d.

W
ha

t 
ki

nd
 o

f 
tr

an
sp

or
ta

ti
on

 
as

si
st

an
ce

 d
o 

yo
u 

ne
ed

?
A

ns
w

er
in

g 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

qu
es

ti
on

s 
m

ay
 

he
lp

 y
ou

 c
ho

os
e 

th
e 

be
st

 w
ay

 t
o 

m
ee

t 
yo

ur
 

tr
an

sp
or

ta
ti

on
 n

ee
ds

:

n
 W

h
at

 is
 y

ou
r 

ab
il

it
y 

to
 c

li
m

b 
st

ai
rs

, 
u

se
 r

am
ps

, e
le

va
to

rs
, o

r 
es

ca
la

to
rs

 in
 

bu
il

di
n

gs
, s

ta
ti

on
s,

 a
n

d 
at

 s
to

ps
?

n
 W

il
l i

t 
be

 s
af

e 
fo

r 
yo

u
 t

o 
dr

iv
e,

 w
al

k,
 o

r 
bi

cy
cl

e 
to

 y
ou

r 
de

st
in

at
io

n
 b

y 
yo

u
rs

el
f?

 

n
 D

o 
yo

u
 f

ee
l c

om
fo

rt
ab

le
 a

sk
in

g 
fa

m
il

y 
an

d 
fr

ie
n

ds
 t

o 
h

el
p 

yo
u

?

n
 I

f a
 r

el
at

iv
e 

or
 c

ar
eg

iv
er

 g
iv

es
 y

ou
 a

 
ri

de
, c

an
 y

ou
 g

et
 in

to
 t

he
 v

eh
ic

le
 o

n 
yo

ur
 

ow
n 

or
 w

ill
 y

ou
 n

ee
d 

as
si

st
an

ce
, w

ill
 

yo
u 

ne
ed

 a
 s

te
ps

to
ol

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
as

si
st

iv
e 

de
vi

ce
, a

nd
/o

r 
w

ill
 y

ou
 n

ee
d 

a 
gr

ab
 

ha
nd

le
 n

ea
r 

th
e 

ve
hi

cl
e 

do
or

?

n
 A

re
 y

ou
 f

am
il

ia
r 

w
it

h
 p

u
bl

ic
 o

r 
pr

iv
at

e 
tr

an
sp

or
ta

ti
on

 o
pt

io
n

s 
(s

u
ch

 a
s 

bu
se

s,
 

ra
il

 o
r 

ta
xi

 s
er

vi
ce

s)
 in

 y
ou

r 
ar

ea
?

n
 H

ow
 w

el
l d

o 
yo

u 
to

le
ra

te
 c

ro
w

ds
 a

nd
 

lo
ud

 n
oi

se
? 

R
id

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
m

ay
 in

vo
lv

e 
m

ov
in

g 
am

on
g 

cr
ow

ds
, 

m
ot

io
n 

of
 s

ce
ne

ry
 p

as
si

ng
 b

y 
th

e 
w

in
do

w
s 

of
 a

 v
eh

ic
le

, a
nd

 fl
as

hi
ng

 
lig

ht
s.

 W
ill

 a
ny

 o
f t

he
se

 s
ta

rt
le

 y
ou

 o
r 

af
fe

ct
 y

ou
r 

ab
ili

ty
 t

o 
ri

de
 in

 a
 v

eh
ic

le
?

n
 D

o 
yo

u
 h

av
e 

h
ea

lt
h

 is
su

es
 t

h
at

 
m

ig
h

t 
af

fe
ct

 y
ou

r 
u

se
 o

f 
pu

bl
ic

 
tr

an
sp

or
ta

ti
on

? 
F

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e:

n
 A

re
 y

ou
 a

bl
e 

to
 r

id
e 

si
tt

in
g 

or
 

st
an

di
n

g 
n

ex
t 

to
 o

th
er

s?
 

n
 C

an
 y

ou
 r

id
e 

fo
r 

u
p 

to
 a

n
 h

ou
r?

  
W

il
l y

ou
 n

ee
d 

a 
se

at
? 

W
il

l y
ou

 n
ee

d 
to

 t
ak

e 
m

ed
ic

at
io

n
? 

n
 A

re
 y

ou
 a

bl
e 

to
 t

ra
ve

l a
lo

n
e?

 D
o 

yo
u

 h
av

e 
a 

ca
re

gi
ve

r 
th

at
 w

il
l b

e 
tr

av
el

in
g 

w
it

h
 y

ou
? 

n
 A

re
 y

ou
 f

am
il

ia
r 

w
it

h
 r

id
e 

sh
ar

in
g 

or
 v

et
er

an
 d

ri
ve

r 
pr

og
ra

m
s 

as
 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 t
o 

pu
bl

ic
 t

ra
n

sp
or

ta
ti

on
?

C
ov

er
 C

re
di

t: 
M

ou
nt

ai
n 

Li
ne

 T
ra

ns
it

 A
ut

ho
ri

ty

A 
G

ui
de

 f
or

 S
er

vi
ce

 
M

em
be

rs
, 

Ve
te

ra
ns

 &
  

Th
ei

r 
Fa

m
ily

 C
ar

eg
iv

er
s

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
ti

on
 p

la
ys

 a
n 

es
se

nt
ia

l 
ro

le
 in

 t
he

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f 

go
od

 h
ea

lt
h 

an
d 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n 
in

 
co

m
m

un
it

y 
lif

e.

U
se

 t
h

e 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

on
 i

n
 t

h
is

 g
u

id
e 

to
 

h
el

p 
yo

u
 a

n
d

 y
ou

r 
ca

re
gi

ve
rs

 t
a

lk
 

w
it

h
 y

ou
r 

V
A

 h
ea

lt
h

ca
re

 t
ea

m
, s

u
ch

 
a

s 
yo

u
r 

pa
ti

en
t 

a
li

gn
ed

 c
a

re
 t

ea
m

 
so

ci
a

l 
w

or
ke

r,
 V

A
 p

h
ys

ic
ia

n
, o

r 
C

a
re

gi
ve

r 
S

u
pp

or
t 

C
oo

rd
in

a
to

r 
a

bo
u

t 
yo

u
r 

tr
a

n
sp

or
ta

ti
on

 n
ee

d
s 

 
a

n
d

 o
pt

io
n

s.
D

e
C

e
M

b
e

R
 2

01
4

E
as

te
r 

S
ea

ls
 P

ro
je

ct
 A

C
T

IO
N

 (E
S

P
A

) 
is

 fu
nd

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
a 

co
op

er
at

iv
e 

ag
re

em
en

t w
it

h 
th

e 
U

.S
. D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
of

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n,

 F
ed

er
al

 T
ra

ns
it

 
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
(U

.S
. D

O
T

). 
T

hi
s 

do
cu

m
en

t i
s 

di
ss

em
in

at
ed

 b
y 

E
S

P
A

 in
 th

e 
in

te
re

st
 o

f i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
ex

ch
an

ge
. E

as
te

r 
S

ea
ls

 a
nd

 th
e 

U
.S

. D
O

T
 d

o 
no

t 
as

su
m

e 
li

ab
il

it
y 

fo
r 

it
s 

co
nt

en
ts

 o
r 

us
e.

 1
42

5 
K

 S
tr

ee
t 

N
.W

. 
Su

it
e 

20
0 

W
as

hi
ng

to
n,

 D
.C

. 2
00

05
 

(8
00

) 6
59

-6
42

8 
(2

02
) 3

47
-7

38
5 

(T
T

Y
) 

pr
oj

ec
ta

ct
io

n.
or

g

Re
ac

hi
ng

 A
m

er
ic

a®

Pl
an

ni
ng

 f
or

 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

ti
on

 a
ft

er
 

M
ed

ic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s

11.1

Page 43



Co
ns

id
er

 y
ou

r 
he

al
th

.
n
 W

il
l y

ou
 n

ee
d 

to
 u

se
 a

 c
an

e,
 w

al
ke

r,
 

cr
u

tc
h

es
 o

r 
w

h
ee

lc
h

ai
r?

n
 D

o 
lo

u
d 

n
oi

se
s 

or
 fl

as
h

in
g 

li
gh

ts
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

n
tl

y 
bo

th
er

 y
ou

? 
D

o 
yo

u
 

st
ar

tl
e 

ea
si

ly
?

n
 W

il
l y

ou
 n

ee
d 

cu
rb

-t
o-

cu
rb

, d
oo

r-
to

-
do

or
 o

r 
do

or
-t

h
ro

u
gh

-d
oo

r 
se

rv
ic

e?

n
 F

ol
lo

w
 u

p 
w

it
h

 y
ou

r 
V

A
 p

h
ys

ic
ia

n
 o

r 
h

ea
lt

h
ca

re
 p

ro
vi

de
r 

ab
ou

t 
w

h
et

h
er

 t
h

e 
ch

an
ge

 in
 y

ou
r 

h
ea

lt
h

 is
 t

em
po

ra
ry

 o
r 

pe
rm

an
en

t.

Co
ns

id
er

 p
ub

lic
 o

r 
pr

iv
at

e 
tr

an
sp

or
ta

ti
on

 o
pt

io
ns

.
n
 A

sk
 y

ou
r 

V
A

 p
at

ie
n

t 
al

ig
n

ed
 c

ar
e 

te
am

 (
P

A
C

T
) 

so
ci

al
 w

or
ke

r,
 C

ar
eg

iv
er

 
S

u
pp

or
t 

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

 (
C

S
C

) 
or

 o
th

er
 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f 

yo
u

r 
V

A
 t

re
at

m
en

t 
te

am
 

if
 t

h
ey

 c
an

 s
u

gg
es

t 
tr

an
sp

or
ta

ti
on

 
op

ti
on

s.

n
 C

on
ta

ct
 y

ou
r 

lo
ca

l C
ou

n
ty

 V
et

er
an

s 
S

er
vi

ce
 A

ge
n

cy
 o

r 
a 

V
et

er
an

s 
S

er
vi

ce
 

O
rg

an
iz

at
io

n
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

a 
D

is
ab

le
d 

A
m

er
ic

an
 V

et
er

an
s 

ch
ap

te
r 

to
 s

ee
 if

 
th

ey
 c

an
 h

el
p 

ar
ra

n
ge

 t
ra

n
sp

or
ta

ti
on

 
to

 V
A

 m
ed

ic
al

 a
pp

oi
n

tm
en

ts
.

n
 e

xp
lo

re
 w

h
et

h
er

 y
ou

r 
lo

ca
l V

A
 h

as
 

vo
lu

n
te

er
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
th

at
 m

ay
 b

e 
ab

le
 

to
 o

ff
er

 a
ss

is
ta

n
ce

 w
it

h
 t

ra
n

sp
or

ta
ti

on
.

D
is

cu
ss

 y
ou

r 
tr

an
sp

or
ta

ti
on

 n
ee

ds
.

A
ft

er
 y

ou
 r

ev
ie

w
 y

ou
r 

tr
an

sp
or

ta
ti

on
 

as
si

st
an

ce
 n

ee
ds

, t
al

k 
w

it
h 

yo
ur

 V
A

 
ph

ys
ic

ia
n,

 s
oc

ia
l w

or
ke

r,
 C

ar
eg

iv
er

 
Su

pp
or

t 
C

oo
rd

in
at

or
 o

r 
an

y 
m

em
be

r 
of

 
yo

ur
 V

A
 h

ea
lt

hc
ar

e 
te

am
 a

bo
ut

 t
he

 t
yp

e 
of

 
tr

an
sp

or
ta

ti
on

 y
ou

 w
ou

ld
 p

re
fe

r 
an

d 
th

at
 

is
 t

he
 b

es
t 

op
ti

on
(s

) f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

yo
ur

 m
ed

ic
al

 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

or
 m

ed
ic

al
 v

is
it

.

T
al

k 
w

it
h 

yo
ur

 fa
m

ily
, f

ri
en

ds
, o

r 
C

ar
eg

iv
er

s 
ab

ou
t 

ho
w

 t
he

y 
m

ay
 b

e 
ab

le
 t

o 
he

lp
 y

ou
 w

it
h 

yo
ur

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

ne
ed

s.

Ke
ep

 a
 r

ec
or

d 
of

 
co

nt
ac

ts
 y

ou
’v

e 
m

ad
e.

C
ol

le
ct

in
g 

us
ef

ul
 n

am
es

, p
ho

ne
 n

um
be

rs
, 

an
d 

em
ai

l a
dd

re
ss

es
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

or
 

or
ga

ni
za

ti
on

s 
as

 y
ou

 c
om

e 
ac

ro
ss

 t
he

m
 c

an
 

sa
ve

 t
im

e 
la

te
r.

 b
e 

pe
rs

is
te

nt
. I

t 
m

ay
 t

ak
e 

se
ve

ra
l c

al
ls

 o
r 

m
es

sa
ge

s 
to

 fi
nd

 w
ha

t 
yo

u 
ne

ed
 a

nd
 g

et
 y

ou
r 

qu
es

ti
on

s 
an

sw
er

ed
.

A
dd

it
io

na
l c

on
si

de
ra

ti
on

s 
w

he
n 

m
ak

in
g 

tr
an

sp
or

ta
ti

on
 c

ho
ic

es
.

n
 C

on
du

ct
 in

te
rn

et
 s

ea
rc

h
 f

or
 p

u
bl

ic
 a

n
d 

pr
iv

at
e 

tr
an

sp
or

ta
ti

on
 o

pt
io

n
s.

 S
ea

rc
h

 
ke

yw
or

ds
: t

ra
n

si
t,

 t
ra

n
sp

or
ta

ti
on

, 
tr

an
sp

or
ta

ti
on

 a
ss

is
ta

n
ce

, v
ol

u
n

te
er

 
dr

iv
er

s,
 V

et
er

an
 d

ri
ve

rs
, l

oc
al

 p
u

bl
ic

 
tr

an
si

t 
ag

en
cy

, t
ax

i c
om

pa
n

ie
s 

an
d 

vo
lu

n
te

er
 d

ri
ve

r 
pr

og
ra

m
s.

n
 C

on
si

de
r 

w
h

et
h

er
 y

ou
r 

lo
ca

l r
el

ig
io

u
s/

sp
ir

it
u

al
 c

om
m

u
n

it
y 

m
ay

 b
e 

ab
le

 t
o 

h
el

p.

n
 D

ow
n

lo
ad

 a
 F

in
d 

a 
R

id
e 

or
 R

id
e 

S
h

ar
in

g 
ap

p 
on

 y
ou

r 
sm

ar
tp

h
on

e

n
 U

se
 G

oo
gl

e 
T

ra
n

si
t 

to
 h

el
p 

id
en

ti
fy

 
bu

s 
an

d 
ra

il
 r

ou
te

s 
an

d 
sc

h
ed

u
le

 
op

ti
on

s.

n
 D

ia
l l

oc
al

 2
11

 o
r 

31
1 

te
le

ph
on

e 
se

rv
ic

e.
 F

ol
lo

w
 t

h
e 

in
st

ru
ct

io
n

s 
fo

r 
tr

an
sp

or
ta

ti
on

 
op

ti
on

s.

Co
nt

ac
t 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

VA
 C

ar
eg

iv
er

 S
up

po
rt

 L
in

e
n
 c

al
l 8

55
-2

60
-3

27
4 

n
 o

n
li

n
e:

 w
w

w
.c

ar
eg

iv
er

.v
a.

go
v

Ve
te

ra
ns

 C
ri

si
s 

Li
ne

n
 8

00
-2

73
-8

25
5 

(P
re

ss
 1

)

Ea
st

er
 S

ea
ls

 C
om

m
un

it
y 

O
ne

 S
ou

rc
e

n
 c

al
l: 

86
6-

42
3-

49
81

n
 e

m
ai

l: 
ve

te
ra

n
s@

ea
st

er
se

al
s.

co
m

n
 o

n
li

n
e:

 w
w

w
.e

as
te

rs
ea

ls
.c

om
/

ou
r-

pr
og

ra
m

s/
m

il
it

ar
y-

ve
te

ra
n

s/
co

m
m

u
n

it
y-

on
es

ou
rc

e.
h

tm
l

V
A

 S
oc

ia
l W

or
ke

r/
C

ar
eg

iv
er

 S
up

po
rt

 
C

oo
rd

in
at

or
: _

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
_

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

V
A

 P
at

ie
nt

 A
lig

ne
d 

C
ar

e 
T

ea
m

: _
__

__
__

__
_

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

A
pp

oi
nt

m
en

t 
N

ot
es

: _
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

C
re

di
t: 

W
M

A
TA

 p
ho

to
 b

y 
La

rr
y 

Le
vi

ne

Page 44



 
 

 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150126\11.2_2014_Paratransit_Outreach_Summary_Report_20150126.docx 

 

Memorandum 11.2 

 

DATE: January 26, 2015 

SUBJECT: 2014 Paratransit Outreach Summary Report 

RECOMMENDATION: Receive an update on Outreach conducted by the 

Paratransit Coordination Team in 2014 

 

2014 Outreach 

Throughout the year, the Alameda CTC’s Paratransit Coordination 

Team attends various outreach events to provide the general public 

with information on specialized transportation services for seniors and 

people with disabilities in Alameda County. Attachment A highlights 

the outreach accomplishments of 2014, including PAPCO member 

participation. 

 

At most events, the Alameda CTC manages a table and provides a 

wide range of informational materials to attendees. At speaking 

engagements, staff may also distribute informational materials. PAPCO 

members are encouraged to attend Alameda CTC outreach events 

and help provide information and distribute outreach materials.  

 

Although events attended by the Alameda CTC’s Paratransit 

Coordination Team are focused towards seniors and people with 

disabilities, Paratransit information is also distributed at all general 

Alameda CTC outreach events. 
 

Attachments 

A. Summary of 2014 Outreach Accomplishments 

Page 45



 

R
:\

A
la

C
TC

_
M

e
e

ti
n

g
s\

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
_
TA

C
s\

P
A

P
C

O
\

2
0
1
5
0
1
2
6
\

1
1
.2

_
2

0
1

4
_
P

a
ra

tr
a

n
si

t_
O

u
tr

e
a

c
h

_
Su

m
m

a
ry

_
R

e
p

o
rt

_
2

0
1

5
0

1
2

6
.d

o
c

x
 

  E
v

e
n

t 
D

a
te

 
E
v

e
n

t 
N

a
m

e
 

S
p

o
n

so
ri
n

g
 A

g
e

n
c

y
 

E
v

e
n

t 
Lo

c
a

ti
o

n
 

P
A

P
C

O
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 i
n

 

A
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
 

5
-F

e
b

-1
4
 

Tr
a

n
si

ti
o

n
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 N

ig
h

t 

C
it
y
 o

f 
F
re

m
o

n
t,

 C
it
y
 

o
f 

N
e

w
a

rk
, 
N

e
w

 

H
a

v
e

n
 U

n
if
ie

d
 

S
c

h
o

o
l D

is
tr

ic
ts

 

F
re

m
o

n
t 

Te
e

n
 C

e
n

te
r,

 

3
9

7
7
0

 P
a

se
o

 P
a

d
re

 

P
a

rk
w

a
y
, 
F
re

m
o

n
t,

 

C
A

  
9

4
5
3

8
 

N
o

n
e

 

1
5

-M
a

r-
1

4
 

Tr
a

n
si

ti
o

n
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 F

a
ir
e

 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ta

l 

D
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 

a
n

d
 A

d
v

is
o

ry
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

 

C
o

lle
g

e
 o

f 
A

la
m

e
d

a
, 

5
5

5
 R

a
lp

h
 A

p
p

e
zz

a
to

 

M
e

m
o

ri
a

l 
P

a
rk

w
a

y
, 

A
la

m
e

d
a

, 
C

A
  
9

4
5

0
1
 

H
e

rb
 H

a
st

in
g

s 

1
7

-M
a

r-
1

4
 

Tr
a

n
si

t 
F
a

ir
 

P
le

a
sa

n
to

n
 S

e
n

io
r 

C
e

n
te

r 

P
le

a
sa

n
to

n
 S

e
n

io
r 

C
e

n
te

r,
 5

3
5

3
 S

u
n

o
l 

B
o

u
le

v
a

rd
, 

P
le

a
sa

n
to

n
, 
C

A
  

9
4

5
6
6
 

C
a

rm
e

n
 R

iv
e

ra
-

H
e

n
d

ri
c

k
so

n
, 
E
st

h
e

r 

W
a

lt
z 

2
0

-M
a

r-
1

4
 

U
S
O

A
C

 A
n

n
u

a
l 

C
o

n
v

e
n

ti
o

n
 

U
S
O

A
C

 
S
t.

 M
a

ry
's

 C
e

n
te

r,
 9

2
5

 

B
ro

c
k
h

u
rs

t 
A

v
e

n
u

e
, 

O
a

k
la

n
d

, 
C

A
  
9

4
6
0

8
 

S
y
lv

ia
 S

ta
d

m
ir
e

, 

S
a

n
d

ra
 J

o
h

n
so

n
-

S
im

o
n

 

2
2

-M
a

r-
1

4
 

O
a

k
la

n
d

 R
u

n
n

in
g

 

F
e

st
iv

a
l E

x
p

o
 

C
it
y
 o

f 
O

a
k
la

n
d

 
O

a
k
la

n
d

 M
a

rr
io

tt
, 

1
0

0
1

 B
ro

a
d

w
a

y
, 

O
a

k
la

n
d

, 
C

A
  
9

4
6
0

7
 

W
ill

 S
c

o
tt

, 
S
y
lv

ia
 

S
ta

d
m

ir
e

 

2
2

-A
p

r-
1

4
 

O
a

k
la

n
d

 C
it
y
 

C
e

n
te

r 
E
a

rt
h

 D
a

y
 

O
a

k
la

n
d

 C
it
y
 

C
e

n
te

r 

O
a

k
la

n
d

 C
it
y
 C

e
n

te
r 

P
la

za
, 
1

2
4

5
 

B
ro

a
d

w
a

y
, 
O

a
k
la

n
d

, 

C
A

  
9

4
6
1

2
 

N
o

n
e

 

Page 46



 R
:\

A
la

C
TC

_
M

e
e

ti
n

g
s\

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
_
TA

C
s\

P
A

P
C

O
\

2
0
1
5
0
1
2
6
\

1
1
.2

_
2

0
1

4
_
P

a
ra

tr
a

n
si

t_
O

u
tr

e
a

c
h

_
Su

m
m

a
ry

_
R

e
p

o
rt

_
2

0
1

5
0

1
2

6
.d

o
c

x
 

 E
v

e
n

t 
D

a
te

 
E
v

e
n

t 
N

a
m

e
 

S
p

o
n

so
ri
n

g
 A

g
e

n
c

y
 

E
v

e
n

t 
Lo

c
a

ti
o

n
 

P
A

P
C

O
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 i
n

 

A
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
 

2
3

-A
p

r-
1

4
 

S
e

n
io

r 
H

e
a

lt
h

 F
a

ir
 

N
o

rt
h

 B
e

rk
e

le
y
 

S
e

n
io

r 
C

e
n

te
r 

N
o

rt
h

 B
e

rk
e

le
y
 S

e
n

io
r 

C
e

n
te

r,
 1

9
0

1
 H

e
a

rs
t 

A
v

e
n

u
e

, 
B

e
rk

e
le

y
, 
C

A
  

9
4

7
0
9
 

N
o

n
e

 

2
4

-A
p

r-
1

4
 

S
e

n
io

r 
R

e
so

u
rc

e
 

F
a

ir
 

A
lb

a
n

y
 S

e
n

io
r 

C
e

n
te

r 

A
lb

a
n

y
 S

e
n

io
r 

C
e

n
te

r,
 

8
4

6
 M

a
so

n
ic

 A
v

e
n

u
e

, 

A
lb

a
n

y
, 
C

A
  
9

4
7

0
6

 

N
o

n
e

 

1
-M

a
y
-1

4
 

S
e

n
io

r 
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 

W
e

lln
e

ss
 

R
e

so
u

rc
e

 F
a

ir
 

H
a

y
w

a
rd

 A
re

a
 

R
e

c
re

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

P
a

rk
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

K
e

n
n

e
th

 C
. 
A

it
k
e

n
 

S
e

n
io

r 
a

n
d

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 C

e
n

te
r,

 

1
7

8
0
0

 R
e

d
w

o
o

d
 

R
o

a
d

, 
C

a
st

ro
 V

a
lle

y
, 

C
A

  
9

4
5
4

6
 

V
a

n
e

ss
a

 P
ro

e
e

 

3
-M

a
y
-1

4
 

C
in

c
o

 d
e

 M
a

y
o

 

c
o

n
 O

rg
u

llo
 

C
e

le
b

ra
ti
o

n
 

A
sh

la
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

C
e

n
te

r,
 C

it
y
 o

f 
S
a

n
 

Le
a

n
d

ro
 

R
E
A

C
H

 A
sh

la
n

d
 

Y
o

u
th

 C
e

n
te

r,
 1

6
3

3
5

 

E
a

st
 1

4
th

 S
tr

e
e

t,
 S

a
n

 

Le
a

n
d

ro
, 
C

A
  
9

4
5
7

8
 

H
a

rr
ie

tt
e

 S
a

u
n

d
e

rs
 

1
0

-M
a

y
-1

4
 

H
e

a
lt
h

y
 L

iv
in

g
 

E
x
p

o
 

R
o

b
e

rt
 L

iv
e

rm
o

re
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 C

e
n

te
r 

R
o

b
e

rt
 L

iv
e

rm
o

re
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 C

e
n

te
r,

 

4
4

4
4

 E
a

st
 A

v
e

n
u

e
, 

Li
v

e
rm

o
re

, 
C

A
  
9

4
5

5
0
 

N
o

n
e

 

1
5

-M
a

y
-1

4
 

Tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 H

e
a

lt
h

 C
a

re
 

A
c

c
e

ss
 E

v
e

n
t 

H
e

a
lt
h

 O
u

tr
e

a
c

h
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

 

H
e

a
lt
h

 O
u

tr
e

a
c

h
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

, 
4

0
5

 1
4

th
 

S
tr

e
e

t,
 S

u
it
e

 9
0

9
, 

O
a

k
la

n
d

, 
C

A
  
9

4
6
1

2
 

N
o

n
e

 

Page 47



 R
:\

A
la

C
TC

_
M

e
e

ti
n

g
s\

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
_
TA

C
s\

P
A

P
C

O
\

2
0
1
5
0
1
2
6
\

1
1
.2

_
2

0
1

4
_
P

a
ra

tr
a

n
si

t_
O

u
tr

e
a

c
h

_
Su

m
m

a
ry

_
R

e
p

o
rt

_
2

0
1

5
0

1
2

6
.d

o
c

x
 

 E
v

e
n

t 
D

a
te

 
E
v

e
n

t 
N

a
m

e
 

S
p

o
n

so
ri
n

g
 A

g
e

n
c

y
 

E
v

e
n

t 
Lo

c
a

ti
o

n
 

P
A

P
C

O
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 i
n

 

A
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
 

6
-J

u
n

-1
4
 

F
o

u
r 

S
e

a
so

n
s 

o
f 

H
e

a
lt
h

 E
x
p

o
 

C
it
y
 o

f 
F
re

m
o

n
t 

F
re

m
o

n
t 

M
u

lt
i-
S
e

rv
ic

e
 

S
e

n
io

r 
C

e
n

te
r 

a
n

d
 

C
e

n
tr

a
l 
P

a
rk

, 
4

0
0

8
6

 

P
a

se
o

 P
a

d
re

 

P
a

rk
w

a
y
, 
F
re

m
o

n
t,

 

C
A

  
9

4
5
3

8
 

Th
o

m
a

s 
P

e
re

z 

1
1

-J
u

n
-1

4
 

C
a

re
g

iv
e

rs
 

R
e

so
u

rc
e

 F
a

ir
 

E
d

e
n

 M
e

d
ic

a
l 

C
e

n
te

r 
- 

C
a

st
ro

 

V
a

lle
y
 H

o
sp

it
a

l 

E
d

e
n

 M
e

d
ic

a
l 
C

e
n

te
r 

C
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

 C
e

n
te

r,
 

2
0

1
0
1

 L
a

k
e

 C
h

a
b

o
t 

R
o

a
d

, 
2

n
d

 F
lo

o
r,

 

C
a

st
ro

 V
a

lle
y
, 
C

A
  

9
4

5
4
6
 

N
o

n
e

 

1
3

-J
u

n
-1

4
 

H
e

a
lt
h

 F
a

ir
 

S
t.

 P
a

u
l's

 T
o

w
e

rs
 

S
t.

 P
a

u
l's

 T
o

w
e

rs
, 
1

0
0

 

B
a

y
 P

la
c

e
, 
O

a
k
la

n
d

, 

C
A

  
9

4
6
1

0
 

N
o

n
e

 

1
9

-J
u

n
-1

4
 

A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
o

u
n

ty
 

F
a

ir
 S

e
n

io
r 

D
a

y
 

A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
o

u
n

ty
, 

A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
TC

, 
C

it
y
 

o
f 

P
le

a
sa

n
to

n
 

S
e

n
io

r 
C

e
n

te
r,

 

W
h

e
e

ls
 

A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
o

u
n

ty
 

F
a

ir
g

ro
u

n
d

s,
 4

5
0

1
 

P
le

a
sa

n
to

n
 A

v
e

.,
 

P
le

a
sa

n
to

n
, 
C

A
  

9
4

5
6
6
 

S
h

a
w

n
 C

o
st

e
llo

, 

E
st

h
e

r 
A

n
n

 W
a

lt
z 

2
1

-J
u

n
-1

4
 

Tr
o

p
ic

s 
S
e

n
io

r 

R
e

so
u

rc
e

 F
a

ir
 

M
ill

e
n

n
iu

m
 H

o
u

si
n

g
, 

S
P

A
R

C
, 
In

c
. 

Tr
o

p
ic

s 
M

o
b

ile
 H

o
m

e
 

P
a

rk
, 
3

3
0

0
0

 A
lm

a
d

e
n

 

B
o

u
le

v
a

rd
, 
U

n
io

n
 

C
it
y
, 
C

A
  
9

4
5
8

7
  
 

N
o

n
e

 

Page 48



 R
:\

A
la

C
TC

_
M

e
e

ti
n

g
s\

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
_
TA

C
s\

P
A

P
C

O
\

2
0
1
5
0
1
2
6
\

1
1
.2

_
2

0
1

4
_
P

a
ra

tr
a

n
si

t_
O

u
tr

e
a

c
h

_
Su

m
m

a
ry

_
R

e
p

o
rt

_
2

0
1

5
0

1
2

6
.d

o
c

x
 

 E
v

e
n

t 
D

a
te

 
E
v

e
n

t 
N

a
m

e
 

S
p

o
n

so
ri
n

g
 A

g
e

n
c

y
 

E
v

e
n

t 
Lo

c
a

ti
o

n
 

P
A

P
C

O
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 i
n

 

A
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
 

2
6

-J
u

n
-1

4
 

A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
o

u
n

ty
 

F
a

ir
 S

e
n

io
r 

D
a

y
 

A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
o

u
n

ty
, 

A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
TC

, 
C

it
y
 

o
f 

P
le

a
sa

n
to

n
 

S
e

n
io

r 
C

e
n

te
r,

 

W
h

e
e

ls
 

A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
o

u
n

ty
 

F
a

ir
g

ro
u

n
d

s,
 4

5
0

1
 

P
le

a
sa

n
to

n
 A

v
e

.,
 

P
le

a
sa

n
to

n
, 
C

A
  

9
4

5
6
6
 

S
h

a
w

n
 C

o
st

e
llo

, 

E
st

h
e

r 
A

n
n

 W
a

lt
z 

3
-J

u
l-
1

4
 

A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
o

u
n

ty
 

F
a

ir
 S

e
n

io
r 

D
a

y
 

A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
o

u
n

ty
, 

A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
TC

, 
C

it
y
 

o
f 

P
le

a
sa

n
to

n
 

S
e

n
io

r 
C

e
n

te
r,

 

W
h

e
e

ls
 

A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
o

u
n

ty
 

F
a

ir
g

ro
u

n
d

s,
 4

5
0

1
 

P
le

a
sa

n
to

n
 A

v
e

n
u

e
, 

P
le

a
sa

n
to

n
, 
C

A
  

9
4

5
6
6
 

S
h

a
w

n
 C

o
st

e
llo

, 

H
e

rb
 H

a
st

in
g

s,
 

E
st

h
e

r 
A

n
n

 W
a

lt
z 

1
5

-J
u

l-
1

4
 

TE
P

/P
a

ra
tr

a
n

si
t 

P
re

se
n

ta
ti
o

n
 

A
lle

n
 T

e
m

p
le

 A
rm

s 
A

lle
n

 T
e

m
p

le
 A

rm
s,

 

8
1

3
5

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 

B
o

u
le

v
a

rd
, 
O

a
k
la

n
d

, 

C
A

  
9

4
6
2

1
 

N
o

n
e

 

1
7

-J
u

l-
1

4
 

H
e

a
lt
h

y
 L

iv
in

g
 

F
e

st
iv

a
l 

U
S
O

A
C

 
O

a
k
la

n
d

 Z
o

o
, 
9

7
7

7
 

G
o

lf
 L

in
k
s 

R
o

a
d

, 

O
a

k
la

n
d

, 
C

A
  
9

4
6
0

5
 

S
y
lv

ia
 S

ta
d

m
ir
e

, 
W

ill
 

S
c

o
tt

, 
S
a

n
d

ra
 

Jo
h

n
so

n
-S

im
o

n
, 

Jo
n

a
h

 M
a

rk
o

w
it
z,

 

M
ic

h
e

lle
 R

o
u

se
y
 

2
3

-J
u

l-
1

4
 

TE
P

/P
a

ra
tr

a
n

si
t 

P
re

se
n

ta
ti
o

n
 

D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 O

a
k
la

n
d

 

S
e

n
io

r 
C

e
n

te
r 

D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 O

a
k
la

n
d

 

S
e

n
io

r 
C

e
n

te
r,

 2
0

0
 

G
ra

n
d

 A
v

e
n

u
e

, 

O
a

k
la

n
d

, 
C

A
  
9

4
6
1

0
 

N
o

n
e

 

Page 49



 R
:\

A
la

C
TC

_
M

e
e

ti
n

g
s\

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
_
TA

C
s\

P
A

P
C

O
\

2
0
1
5
0
1
2
6
\

1
1
.2

_
2

0
1

4
_
P

a
ra

tr
a

n
si

t_
O

u
tr

e
a

c
h

_
Su

m
m

a
ry

_
R

e
p

o
rt

_
2

0
1

5
0

1
2

6
.d

o
c

x
 

 E
v

e
n

t 
D

a
te

 
E
v

e
n

t 
N

a
m

e
 

S
p

o
n

so
ri
n

g
 A

g
e

n
c

y
 

E
v

e
n

t 
Lo

c
a

ti
o

n
 

P
A

P
C

O
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 i
n

 

A
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
 

6
-A

u
g

-1
4
 

H
e

a
lt
h

y
 A

g
in

g
 

F
a

ir
 

A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
o

u
n

ty
 

A
re

a
 A

g
e

n
c

y
 o

n
 

A
g

in
g

 

C
h

a
b

o
t 

C
o

lle
g

e
, 

2
5

5
5
5

 H
e

sp
e

ri
a

n
 

B
o

u
le

v
a

rd
, 
H

a
y
w

a
rd

, 

C
A

  
9

4
5
4

5
 

N
o

n
e

 

2
3

-A
u

g
-1

4
 

O
a

k
la

n
d

 

C
h

in
a

to
w

n
 S

tr
e

e
t 

F
e

st
 

O
a

k
la

n
d

 

C
h

in
a

to
w

n
 

C
h

a
m

b
e

r 
o

f 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

e
 

O
a

k
la

n
d

 C
h

in
a

to
w

n
, 

3
8

8
 9

th
 S

tr
e

e
t,

 

O
a

k
la

n
d

, 
C

A
  
9

4
6
0

7
 

N
o

n
e

 

2
7

-A
u

g
-1

4
 

O
p

e
n

 H
o

u
se

 a
n

d
 

R
e

so
u

rc
e

 F
a

ir
 

M
a

st
ic

k
 S

e
n

io
r 

C
e

n
te

r 

M
a

st
ic

k
 S

e
n

io
r 

C
e

n
te

r,
 1

1
5

5
 S

a
n

ta
 

C
la

ra
 A

v
e

n
u

e
, 

A
la

m
e

d
a

, 
C

A
  
9

4
5

0
1
 

N
o

n
e

 

1
9

-S
e

p
-1

4
 

S
e

n
io

r 
R

e
so

u
rc

e
 

F
a

ir
 

C
it
y
 o

f 
S
a

n
 L

e
a

n
d

ro
 

S
a

n
 L

e
a

n
d

ro
 S

e
n

io
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 C

e
n

te
r,

 

1
3

9
0
9

 E
a

st
 1

4
th

 

S
tr

e
e

t,
 S

a
n

 L
e

a
n

d
ro

, 

C
A

  
9

4
5
7

8
 

N
o

n
e

 

4
-O

c
t-

1
4
 

S
e

n
io

r 
In

fo
 F

a
ir
 

D
u

b
lin

 S
e

n
io

r 

C
e

n
te

r 

D
u

b
lin

 S
e

n
io

r 
C

e
n

te
r,

 

7
6

0
0

 A
m

a
d

o
r 

V
a

lle
y
 

B
o

u
le

v
a

rd
, 
D

u
b

lin
, 
C

A
  

9
4

5
6
8
 

N
o

n
e

 

7
-O

c
t-

1
4
 

S
e

n
io

r 
R

e
so

u
rc

e
 

F
a

ir
e

 

N
e

w
a

rk
 S

e
n

io
r 

C
e

n
te

r 

S
ill

im
a

n
 A

c
ti
v

it
y
 

C
e

n
te

r,
 6

8
0

0
 M

o
w

ry
 

A
v

e
n

u
e

, 
N

e
w

a
rk

, 
C

A
  

9
4

5
6
0
 

S
u

za
n

n
e

 O
rt

t,
 T

o
m

 

P
e

re
z 

Page 50



 R
:\

A
la

C
TC

_
M

e
e

ti
n

g
s\

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
_
TA

C
s\

P
A

P
C

O
\

2
0
1
5
0
1
2
6
\

1
1
.2

_
2

0
1

4
_
P

a
ra

tr
a

n
si

t_
O

u
tr

e
a

c
h

_
Su

m
m

a
ry

_
R

e
p

o
rt

_
2

0
1

5
0

1
2

6
.d

o
c

x
 

 E
v

e
n

t 
D

a
te

 
E
v

e
n

t 
N

a
m

e
 

S
p

o
n

so
ri
n

g
 A

g
e

n
c

y
 

E
v

e
n

t 
Lo

c
a

ti
o

n
 

P
A

P
C

O
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 i
n

 

A
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
 

1
7

-O
c

t-
1

4
 

M
o

b
ili

ty
 

W
o

rk
sh

o
p

 

A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
TC

 
E
d

 R
o

b
e

rt
s 

C
a

m
p

u
s,

 

3
0

7
5

 A
d

e
lin

e
 S

tr
e

e
t,

 

B
e

rk
e

le
y
, 
C

A
  
9

4
7
0

3
 

S
y
lv

ia
 S

ta
d

m
ir
e

, 

S
h

a
w

n
 C

o
st

e
llo

, 

Jo
y
c

e
 J

a
c

o
b

so
n

, 

S
a

n
d

ra
 J

o
h

n
so

n
-

S
im

o
n

, 
Jo

n
a

h
 

M
a

rk
o

w
it
z,

 C
a

ro
ly

n
 

O
rr

, 
S
u

za
n

n
e

 O
rt

t,
 

Th
o

m
a

s 
P

e
re

z,
 

S
h

a
ro

n
 P

o
w

e
rs

, 

V
a

n
e

ss
a

 P
ro

e
e

, 

H
a

rr
ie

tt
e

 S
a

u
n

d
e

rs
, 

E
st

h
e

r 
W

a
lt
z,

 H
a

le
 

Z
u

k
a

s 

 In
te

ra
g

e
n

c
y

 O
u

tr
e

a
c

h
 

O
n

 a
 q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y
 b

a
si

s,
 s

ta
ff

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

s 
a

 “
th

e
m

e
”
 (

su
c

h
 a

s 
E
R

C
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
, 
fa

it
h

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s,
 o

r 

v
e

te
ra

n
s)

 a
n

d
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 a

g
e

n
c

ie
s,

 n
o

n
-p

ro
fi
t 

o
rg

a
n

iz
a

ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 c

e
n

te
rs

 

th
a

t 
p

ro
v

id
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

to
 s

e
n

io
rs

 a
n

d
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s 
w

it
h

in
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

o
u

n
ty

. 
 S

ta
ff

 

e
st

a
b

lis
h

e
s 

o
u

tr
e

a
c

h
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
to

 t
h

e
se

 a
g

e
n

c
ie

s 
b

y
 in

it
ia

ti
n

g
 c

o
n

ta
c

t 
a

n
d

 d
is

tr
ib

u
ti
n

g
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 

C
TC

 m
a

te
ri
a

ls
 f

o
r 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
d

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

ir
 r

e
sp

e
c

ti
v
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s.
 

C
o

n
ta

c
t 

D
a

te
 

O
rg

a
n

iz
a

ti
o

n
 

G
o

a
l 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 

2
1

-F
e

b
-1

4
 

V
o

lu
n

te
e

r 
D

ri
v

e
r 

P
ro

g
ra

m
s 

in
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 

C
o

u
n

ty
 (

S
e

n
io

r 
H

e
lp

lin
e

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s,

 S
e

n
io

r 
S
u

p
p

o
rt

 

E
st

a
b

lis
h

 o
u

tr
e

a
c

h
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
to

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

r 

d
ri
v

e
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
s 

in
 

A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
o

u
n

ty
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

D
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

TC
 

p
u

b
lic

a
ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 

fo
r 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
d

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
. 

Page 51



 R
:\

A
la

C
TC

_
M

e
e

ti
n

g
s\

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
_
TA

C
s\

P
A

P
C

O
\

2
0
1
5
0
1
2
6
\

1
1
.2

_
2

0
1

4
_
P

a
ra

tr
a

n
si

t_
O

u
tr

e
a

c
h

_
Su

m
m

a
ry

_
R

e
p

o
rt

_
2

0
1

5
0

1
2

6
.d

o
c

x
 

 C
o

n
ta

c
t 

D
a

te
 

O
rg

a
n

iz
a

ti
o

n
 

G
o

a
l 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 o

f 
th

e
 T

ri
-V

a
lle

y
, 

D
ri
v

e
rs

 f
o

r 
S
u

rv
iv

o
rs

, 
V

IP
 

R
id

e
s-

LI
F
E
 E

ld
e

rC
a

re
) 

p
a

rt
n

e
ri
n

g
 a

g
e

n
c

ie
s 

su
c

h
 

a
s 

S
e

n
io

r 
H

e
lp

lin
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s,

 

S
e

n
io

r 
S
u

p
p

o
rt

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 o

f 

th
e

 T
ri
-V

a
lle

y
, 
D

ri
v

e
rs

 f
o

r 

S
u

rv
iv

o
rs

, 
V

IP
 R

id
e

s/
LI

F
E
 

E
ld

e
rC

a
re

 a
n

d
 d

is
tr

ib
u

te
 

A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
TC

 p
u

b
lic

a
ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 f

o
r 

fu
rt

h
e

r 

d
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
. 

2
-J

u
n

-1
4
 

TB
D

 
A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

TC
's

 P
a

ra
tr

a
n

si
t 

C
o

o
rd

in
a

ti
o

n
 T

e
a

m
 w

ill
 

g
e

n
e

ra
te

 a
n

d
 s

e
n

d
 a

n
 

o
n

lin
e

 s
u

rv
e

y
, 
b

a
se

d
 o

n
 

M
a

ri
n

's
 e

x
a

m
p

le
, 
to

 p
a

rt
n

e
r 

o
rg

a
n

iz
a

ti
o

n
s 

to
 id

e
n

ti
fy

 

a
n

y
 u

n
m

e
t 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 

n
e

e
d

s 
fo

r 
g

ro
u

p
s 

a
n

d
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
in

 A
la

m
e

d
a

 

C
o

u
n

ty
. 

 T
B

D
 

 M
a

te
ri
a

ls
 D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 

E
a

c
h

 q
u

a
rt

e
r,

 s
ta

ff
 f

o
c

u
se

s 
o

n
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 f
o

u
r 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
re

a
s 

(N
o

rt
h

, 
C

e
n

tr
a

l, 
S
o

u
th

 a
n

d
 E

a
st

) 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 a

n
d

 d
is

tr
ib

u
te

s 
p

u
b

lic
a

ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 t

o
 s

e
n

io
r 

c
e

n
te

rs
 a

n
d

 s
e

n
io

r 
h

o
u

si
n

g
 

fa
c

ili
ti
e

s 
in

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

a
. 
S
ta

ff
 a

ls
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
s 

m
a

te
ri
a

ls
 t

o
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

TC
 a

d
v

is
o

ry
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
, 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 a
n

d
 p

a
rt

n
e

r 
a

g
e

n
c

ie
s 

o
n

 a
n

 a
s 

n
e

e
d

e
d

 b
a

si
s.

 

 

Page 52



 R
:\

A
la

C
TC

_
M

e
e

ti
n

g
s\

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
_
TA

C
s\

P
A

P
C

O
\

2
0
1
5
0
1
2
6
\

1
1
.2

_
2

0
1

4
_
P

a
ra

tr
a

n
si

t_
O

u
tr

e
a

c
h

_
Su

m
m

a
ry

_
R

e
p

o
rt

_
2

0
1

5
0

1
2

6
.d

o
c

x
 

 D
is

t.
 D

a
te

 
A

g
e

n
c

y
 

M
a

te
ri
a

ls
 

2
2

-J
a

n
-1

4
 

C
it
y
 o

f 
A

lb
a

n
y
 P

a
ra

tr
a

n
si

t 
4

0
 E

n
g

lis
h

 A
c

c
e

ss
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 G

u
id

e
s,

 H
D

TS
 &

 

W
S
B

TS
 F

ly
e

rs
 a

n
d

 S
ti
c

k
e

rs
, 
A

g
in

g
 F

a
c

t 
S
h

e
e

ts
, 

S
te

p
 I
n

to
 L

if
e

 B
o

o
k
m

a
rk

s,
 E

-N
e

w
sl

e
tt

e
rs

 

2
2

-J
a

n
-1

4
 

C
e

n
te

r 
fo

r 
In

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
Li

v
in

g
 

5
0

 W
S
B

TS
 B

ro
c

h
u

re
s 

a
n

d
 S

ti
c

k
e

rs
 

2
1

-F
e

b
-1

4
 

D
u

b
lin

 S
e

n
io

r 
C

e
n

te
r 

A
c

c
e

ss
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 G

u
id

e
s 

(a
ll 

a
v

a
ila

b
le

 

la
n

g
u

a
g

e
s)

, 
H

D
TS

 &
 W

S
B

TS
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
, 
A

g
in

g
 i
n

 A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
o

u
n

ty
 F

a
c

t 

S
h

e
e

ts
, 
A

C
 T

ra
n

si
t 

W
h

e
e

lc
h

a
ir
 S

e
c

u
re

m
e

n
t 

B
ro

c
h

u
re

, 
a

n
d

 "
S
te

p
 I
n

to
 L

if
e

" 
C

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 

B
o

o
k
m

a
rk

s 

Li
v

e
rm

o
re

 S
e

n
io

r 
C

e
n

te
r 

P
le

a
sa

n
to

n
 S

e
n

io
r 

C
e

n
te

r 

G
a

rd
e

n
s 

a
t 

Ir
o

n
w

o
o

d
 

H
e

ri
ta

g
e

 E
st

a
te

s 
S
e

n
io

r 

A
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ts

 

H
e

ri
ta

g
e

 P
a

rk
 

R
id

g
e

 V
ie

w
 C

o
m

m
o

n
s 

Th
e

 G
ro

v
e

s 
a

t 
D

u
b

lin
 

2
5

-F
e

b
-1

4
 

C
it
y
 o

f 
A

la
m

e
d

a
 P

a
ra

tr
a

n
si

t 
2

0
 H

D
TS

 F
ly

e
rs

, 
2

0
 W

S
B

TS
 B

ro
c

h
u

re
s 

a
n

d
 S

ti
c

k
e

rs
 

2
5

-F
e

b
-1

4
 

C
it
y
 o

f 
S
a

n
 L

e
a

n
d

ro
 P

a
ra

tr
a

n
si

t 
1

5
0

 E
n

g
lis

h
 A

c
c

e
ss

 A
la

m
e

d
a

 G
u

id
e

s,
 2

5
 

S
p

a
n

is
h

 a
n

d
 C

h
in

e
se

 A
c

c
e

ss
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 G

u
id

e
s 

2
5

-F
e

b
-1

4
 

C
it
y
 o

f 
P

le
a

sa
n

to
n

 R
e

si
d

e
n

t 
3

0
 E

n
g

lis
h

 A
c

c
e

ss
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 G

u
id

e
s 

8
-A

p
r-

1
4
 

C
it
y
 o

f 
F
re

m
o

n
t 

P
a

ra
tr

a
n

si
t 

1
0

0
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

TC
 B

o
o

k
m

a
rk

s,
 W

a
lle

ts
, 

W
h

is
tl
e

s,
 P

e
n

s 
a

n
d

 L
a

n
y
a

rd
s 

8
-A

p
r-

1
4
 

U
S
O

A
C

 
5

0
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

TC
 W

a
lle

ts
, 

W
h

is
tl
e

s 
a

n
d

 P
e

n
s 

1
2

-M
a

y
-1

4
 

C
e

n
te

r 
fo

r 
In

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
Li

v
in

g
 

1
0

0
 W

S
B

TS
 B

ro
c

h
u

re
s 

a
n

d
 S

ti
c

k
e

rs
 

1
2

-M
a

y
-1

4
 

B
H

C
S
 -

 G
A

R
T 

P
ro

g
ra

m
/C

ri
si

s 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 

6
0

 E
n

g
lis

h
 A

c
c

e
ss

 A
la

m
e

d
a

 G
u

id
e

s,
 2

0
 S

p
a

n
is

h
 

a
n

d
 C

h
in

e
se

 A
c

c
e

ss
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 G

u
id

e
s,

 2
0

 

H
D

TS
 F

ly
e

rs
, 
2

0
 W

S
B

TS
 B

ro
c

h
u

re
s 

a
n

d
 S

ti
c

k
e

rs
 

3
0

-M
a

y
-1

4
 

F
re

m
o

n
t 

S
e

n
io

r 
C

e
n

te
r 

A
c

c
e

ss
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 G

u
id

e
s 

(a
ll 

a
v

a
ila

b
le

 

la
n

g
u

a
g

e
s)

, 
H

D
TS

 &
 W

S
B

TS
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
, 
A

g
in

g
 i
n

 A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
o

u
n

ty
 F

a
c

t 
N

e
w

a
rk

 S
e

n
io

r 
C

e
n

te
r 

U
n

io
n

 C
it
y
 S

e
n

io
r 

C
e

n
te

r 

Page 53



 R
:\

A
la

C
TC

_
M

e
e

ti
n

g
s\

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
_
TA

C
s\

P
A

P
C

O
\

2
0
1
5
0
1
2
6
\

1
1
.2

_
2

0
1

4
_
P

a
ra

tr
a

n
si

t_
O

u
tr

e
a

c
h

_
Su

m
m

a
ry

_
R

e
p

o
rt

_
2

0
1

5
0

1
2

6
.d

o
c

x
 

 D
is

t.
 D

a
te

 
A

g
e

n
c

y
 

M
a

te
ri
a

ls
 

N
e

w
a

rk
 G

a
rd

e
n

s 
I 

S
h

e
e

ts
 a

n
d

 "
S
te

p
 I
n

to
 L

if
e

" 
C

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 

B
o

o
k
m

a
rk

s 
S
e

q
u

o
ia

 M
a

n
o

r 

V
ic

to
ri
a

 G
a

rd
e

n
s 

V
in

ta
g

e
 C

o
u

rt
 A

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 

1
8

-J
u

n
-1

4
 

U
S
O

A
C

 
5

0
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

TC
 W

a
lle

ts
 

8
-J

u
l-
1

4
 

U
S
O

A
C

 
6

0
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

TC
 W

a
lle

ts
 a

n
d

 P
e

n
s 

1
0

-J
u

l-
1

4
 

R
e

b
u

ild
in

g
 T

o
g

e
th

e
r 

O
a

k
la

n
d

 
1

5
0

 H
D

TS
 a

n
d

 W
S
B

TS
 B

ro
c

h
u

re
s,

 F
ly

e
rs

 a
n

d
 

S
ti
c

k
e

rs
; 
1

5
0

 E
n

g
lis

h
 A

c
c

e
ss

 A
la

m
e

d
a

 G
u

id
e

s 

1
0

-J
u

l-
1

4
 

C
it
y
 o

f 
F
re

m
o

n
t 

P
a

ra
tr

a
n

si
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 

5
0

 A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
TC

 W
a

lle
ts

 a
n

d
 L

a
n

y
a

rd
s 

1
9

-A
u

g
-1

4
 

U
S
O

A
C

 
5

0
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

TC
 W

a
lle

ts
 

2
2

-A
u

g
-1

4
 

M
a

st
ic

k
 S

e
n

io
r 

C
e

n
te

r 
A

c
c

e
ss

 A
la

m
e

d
a

 G
u

id
e

s 
(a

ll 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 

la
n

g
u

a
g

e
s)

, 
H

D
TS

 &
 W

S
B

TS
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
, 
A

g
in

g
 i
n

 A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
o

u
n

ty
 F

a
c

t 

S
h

e
e

ts
 a

n
d

 "
S
te

p
 I
n

to
 L

if
e

" 
C

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 

B
o

o
k
m

a
rk

s 

A
lb

a
n

y
 S

e
n

io
r 

C
e

n
te

r 

E
a

st
 B

a
y
 K

o
re

a
n

 S
e

n
io

r 
C

e
n

te
r 

E
a

st
 O

a
k
la

n
d

 S
e

n
io

r 
C

e
n

te
r 

E
m

e
ry

v
ill

e
 S

e
n

io
r 

C
e

n
te

r 

F
ru

it
v

a
le

-S
a

n
 A

n
to

n
io

 S
e

n
io

r 

C
e

n
te

r 

S
o

u
th

 B
e

rk
e

le
y
 S

e
n

io
r 

C
e

n
te

r 

D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 O

a
k
la

n
d

 S
e

n
io

r 

C
e

n
te

r 

N
o

rt
h

 B
e

rk
e

le
y
 S

e
n

io
r 

C
e

n
te

r 

W
e

st
 O

a
k
la

n
d

 S
e

n
io

r 
C

e
n

te
r 

H
a

rr
ie

t 
Tu

b
m

a
n

 T
e

rr
a

c
e

 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 C
it
y
 o

f 

A
la

m
e

d
a

 

A
v

a
lo

n
 A

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 

Page 54



 R
:\

A
la

C
TC

_
M

e
e

ti
n

g
s\

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
_
TA

C
s\

P
A

P
C

O
\

2
0
1
5
0
1
2
6
\

1
1
.2

_
2

0
1

4
_
P

a
ra

tr
a

n
si

t_
O

u
tr

e
a

c
h

_
Su

m
m

a
ry

_
R

e
p

o
rt

_
2

0
1

5
0

1
2

6
.d

o
c

x
 

 D
is

t.
 D

a
te

 
A

g
e

n
c

y
 

M
a

te
ri
a

ls
 

M
ile

y
 G

a
rd

e
n

s 
a

t 
E
a

st
m

o
n

t 

P
o

sa
d

a
 d

e
 C

o
lo

re
s 

S
a

n
 P

a
b

lo
 H

o
te

l 

2
8

-A
u

g
-1

4
 

U
S
O

A
C

 
2

0
0

 A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
TC

 G
ro

c
e

ry
 B

a
g

s 

9
-S

e
p

-1
4
 

C
it
y
 o

f 
U

n
io

n
 C

it
y
 P

a
ra

tr
a

n
si

t 
2

0
0

 E
n

g
lis

h
 A

c
c

e
ss

 A
la

m
e

d
a

 G
u

id
e

s 

9
-S

e
p

-1
4
 

C
it
y
 o

f 
F
re

m
o

n
t 

P
a

ra
tr

a
n

si
t 

2
0

0
 E

n
g

lis
h

 A
c

c
e

ss
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 G

u
id

e
s 

9
-S

e
p

-1
4
 

U
S
O

A
C

 
1

0
0

 E
n

g
lis

h
 A

c
c

e
ss

 A
la

m
e

d
a

 G
u

id
e

s 

6
-O

c
t-

1
4
 

U
S
O

A
C

 
1

0
0

 A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
TC

 G
ro

c
e

ry
 B

a
g

s 

1
4

-N
o

v
-1

4
 

B
a

n
c

ro
ft

 S
e

n
io

r 
C

e
n

te
r 

A
c

c
e

ss
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 G

u
id

e
s 

(a
ll 

a
v

a
ila

b
le

 

la
n

g
u

a
g

e
s)

, 
H

D
TS

 &
 W

S
B

TS
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
, 
A

g
in

g
 i
n

 A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
o

u
n

ty
 F

a
c

t 

S
h

e
e

ts
 a

n
d

 "
S
te

p
 I
n

to
 L

if
e

" 
C

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 

B
o

o
k
m

a
rk

s 

K
e

n
n

e
th

 C
. 
A

it
k
e

n
 S

e
n

io
r 

C
e

n
te

r 

H
a

y
w

a
rd

 A
re

a
 S

e
n

io
r 

C
e

n
te

r 

H
a

y
w

a
rd

 S
e

n
io

r 
C

e
n

te
r 

M
a

ri
n

a
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 C

e
n

te
r 

S
a

n
 L

e
a

n
d

ro
 S

e
n

io
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

C
e

n
te

r 

E
d

e
n

 I
ss

e
i 
Te

rr
a

c
e

 

E
d

e
n

 L
o

d
g

e
 

H
a

y
w

a
rd

 V
ill

a
g

e
 S

e
n

io
r 

A
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ts

 

Jo
se

p
h

in
e

 L
u

m
 L

o
d

g
e

 

K
e

n
t 

G
a

rd
e

n
s 

S
tr

o
b

ri
d

g
e

 C
o

u
rt

 

W
it
te

n
b

e
rg

 M
a

n
o

r 
I 

E
d

 R
o

b
e

rt
s 

C
a

m
p

u
s 

2
5

-N
o

v
-1

4
 

C
it
y
 o

f 
H

a
y
w

a
rd

 P
a

ra
tr

a
n

si
t 

2
0

0
 E

n
g

lis
h

 A
c

c
e

ss
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 G

u
id

e
s 

2
5

-N
o

v
-1

4
 

LA
V

TA
/W

h
e

e
ls

 
1

0
0

 E
n

g
lis

h
 A

c
c

e
ss

 A
la

m
e

d
a

 G
u

id
e

s 

 

Page 55



 R
:\

A
la

C
TC

_
M

e
e

ti
n

g
s\

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
_
TA

C
s\

P
A

P
C

O
\

2
0
1
5
0
1
2
6
\

1
1
.2

_
2

0
1

4
_
P

a
ra

tr
a

n
si

t_
O

u
tr

e
a

c
h

_
Su

m
m

a
ry

_
R

e
p

o
rt

_
2

0
1

5
0

1
2

6
.d

o
c

x
 

 S
ta

ff
 C

o
n

ta
c

t 
 

N
a

o
m

i A
rm

e
n

ta
, 
P

a
ra

tr
a

n
si

t 
C

o
o

rd
in

a
to

r 

K
ry

st
le

 P
a

sc
o

, 
O

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 C
o

o
rd

in
a

to
r 

 

Page 56

mailto:narmenta@alamedactc.org
mailto:kpasco@alamedactc.org


  

 

TO: Regional Mobility Management Group DATE: December 3, 2014 

FR: Drennen Shelton   

RE: FTA Section 5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities Program for 
the Bay Area’s Large Urbanized Areas Draft Program of Projects  

 
 
Background 
The Section 5310 Formula Grants for the Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with 
Disabilities provides a mix of capital and operating grants to private nonprofit corporations and public 
agencies to provide safe, efficient, and coordinated transportation services for elderly individuals and 
individuals with disabilities for whom public transportation is otherwise unavailable, insufficient, or 
inappropriate. For the FY 2013 and FY 2014 cycle, Caltrans is the designated recipient for the Bay 
Area’s large urbanized areas apportionments, but program development to delegated to MTC.  
 
FY 2013 and FY 2014 Cycle  
In September 2014, MTC adopted Resolution No. 4156, which set forth guidelines for the 
competitive selection of the FY 2013 and FY 2014 cycle. MTC issued a call for projects in October 
with approximately $8.2 million in funding available to projects in the region’s large urbanized 
areas. Applications were due to MTC and County Paratransit Coordinating Councils (PCCs) by 
November 6, 2014. MTC received 20 applications with 103 projects totaling $10.3 million in 
requests. Applications were evaluated for eligibility, and a scoring panel, with input from the PCCs, 
evaluated each project. The draft program of projects is attached. 
 
Next Steps 
Staff will present the draft program of projects to MTC’s Programming and Allocations Committee 
on January 14 and to the Commission for adoption on January 28. After adoption, MTC will transmit 
the program of projects to Caltrans for programming. Caltrans expects to execute funding 
agreements with subrecipients in late fall of 2015, and projects are expected to begin in early 2016. 
 
If you have any questions regarding the 5310 FY 13 and FY 14 Cycle, I can be reached at (510) 817-
5909 or dshelton@mtc.ca.gov. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11.4

Page 57

mailto:dshelton@mtc.ca.gov


Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
 
 

Rank Sponsor Project Name County
Federal Amount 

Requested
Average 

Score
Recommended 
Grant Amount

1 Outreach
Mobility Management Center of Santa Clara 
County Santa Clara 1,961,578$          97 1,961,481$       

2 Outreach

Mobility Management Partnership for San 
Mateo County - Mobility Management 
Center / One Call & One Click Center San Mateo 480,000$             96 480,000$         

3

Sonoma County Human 
Services Department, Area 
Agency on Aging

Sonoma Access Coordinated Transportation 
services (SACTS) Expansion - Operations Sonoma 391,975$             93 391,975$         

4
On Lok Senior Health 
Services Replacement vehicles

Alameda/          
San Francisco 240,000$             92 240,000$         

5 SFMTA SFMTA Mobility Management Project San Francisco 782,340$             91 782,340$         

5
Jewish Family and 
Children's Services Replacement vehicles San Francisco 755,000$             91 755,000$         

7
Senior Helpline Services 
(SHS)

Way to Go…Contra Costa! - Mobility 
Management Center Contra Costa 331,483$             90 331,483$         

7
Center for Independent 
Living (CIL) Mobility Matters Alameda 499,662$             90 499,662$         

7
Peninsula Jewish 
Community Center

Mobility Management Partnership for San 
Mateo County San Mateo 220,000$             90 220,000$         

7
Senior Helpline Services 
(SHS)

Way to Go…Contra Costa! - Rides for 
Seniors Contra Costa 206,770$             90 206,770$         

7
Rehabilitation Services of 
Northern California (RSNC)

Way to Go…Contra Costa! - Mt. Diablo 
Mobilizer Contra Costa 94,340$               90 94,340$           

7 City of Lafayette Way to Go…Contra Costa! - Spirit Van Contra Costa 123,039$             90 123,039$         

7 Futures Explored
Way to Go…Contra Costa! - Program 
Operations Contra Costa 36,250$               90 36,250$           

14 SamTrans
Mobility Management Partnership for San 
Mateo County San Mateo 250,000$             87 250,000$         

14
Marin Senior Coordinating 
Council Inc., (Whistlestop) Replacement and expansion vehicles Marin 187,000$             87 187,000$         

16 LIFE ElderCare
Expanding Door Through Door Volunteer 
Driver Transportation in Alameda County Alameda 187,154$             86 187,154$         

16 Futures Explored Way to Go…Contra Costa! - Vehicle Contra Costa 60,000$               86 60,000$           
18 Golden Rain Way to Go…Contra Costa! - Vehicles Contra Costa 134,000$             85 134,000$         
18 Contra Costa ARC Way to Go…Contra Costa! - Vehicles Contra Costa 152,000$             85 152,000$         
18 City of Lafayette Way to Go…Contra Costa! - Vehicle Contra Costa 46,000$               85 46,000$           

21
Sebastopol Area Senior 
Center

Sonoma Access Coordinated Transportation 
services (SACTS) Expansion - vehicle Sonoma 60,000$               82 60,000$           

22
Friends of Children with 
Special Needs Expansion Minivans Alameda 92,000$               80 92,000$           

22
Peninsula Jewish 
Community Center

Mobility Management Partnership for San 
Mateo County - Vehicle San Mateo 60,000$               80 60,000$           

22 Life Steps Foundation, Inc. Replacement vehicles San Mateo 198,000$             80 198,000$         
22 City of Pacifica Service Expansion vehicle San Mateo 60,000$               80 60,000$           

26 Drivers for Survivors (DFS)
Expanding Door Through Door Volunteer 
Driver Transportation in Alameda County Alameda 130,440$             75 91,336$           

27 Marin Transit Premium Paratransit and Travel Navigator Marin 343,856$             72 184,400$         

28
Center for Elders' 
Independence (CEI) North-South Expansion Vehicles Alameda 478,500$             70 206,500$         

29
Casa Allegra Community 
Services (CACS) Vehicles Marin 138,000$             63 46,000$           

30 Contra Costa ARC Replacement and expansion vehicles Contra Costa 198,000$             60 46,000$           
31 City of Richmond West County Travel Training Contra Costa 800,000$             56 105,000$         

32 City of Sausalito
Sausalito Point to Point Connections and 
Van-Away Marin 62,734$               47 -$                    

Attachment 1
Section 5310 -- FY 2013 & FY 2014

Recommended Program of Projects for the Bay Area's Large Urbanized Areas

 

Page 58

narmenta
Highlight

narmenta
Highlight

narmenta
Highlight

narmenta
Highlight

narmenta
Highlight

narmenta
Highlight



Page 1 of 8                               Earthquake Guide for People with Disabilities/AFN © 10/3/2014 Earthquake Country Alliance 

 
Think about What May Happen During and After an Earthquake or other 
Disaster:  
 

Consider your daily activities.  Think about how a disaster will impact your life. Take into 
consideration what you do independently and where you may need assistance. Keep in mind 
that your regular sources of assistance may not be available after a disaster. Plan now for how 
you will meet your needs.  
 

• What if power, gas, and phone lines are not working? 
• What if roads and sidewalks are impassible or your means of transportation is 

unavailable? 
• How will you maintain supplies of water, food, medications, and other critical needs?  

o Right now:  Make a list of equipment and medication you may need if you had to 
leave your home. Store extras, labeled with your name and contact information, 
in your disaster supplies kit. (See Step 3, below) 

 
This guide follows the Seven Steps to Earthquake Safety, featured in the Putting Down 
Roots in Earthquake Country series of publications at www.earthquakecountry.org/roots and 
online at www.earthquakecountry.org/sevensteps.  The content has been specially adapted for 
people with disabilities and other access and functional needs. 
 
 
STEP 1 – Secure Your Space by identifying hazards and securing moveable 
items: 
 

When you enter a room, look for safe places to Drop, Cover, and Hold On (see Step 5). 

• Safe spaces are places where heavy or falling objects and breaking glass will not injure 
you, such as under tables or desks and 
along inside walls.   

• The more limitations you have, the more 
important it is to create safe spaces for 
yourself - especially if you cannot Drop, 
Cover, and Hold On under a desk or table. 

• Create safe spaces by bolting heavy 
furniture to wall studs, moving heavy items 
to low shelves, securing hanging art to 
walls with closed hooks, or taking other 
measures found at 
www.earthquakecountry.org/step1  

• Secure essential equipment such as oxygen tanks or other life support devices, so they 
will not fall, sustain damage or cause injury. 

• When you are in public places, be aware of your surroundings and identify your safe 
spaces. 

 

Earthquake Preparedness Guide  
for People with Disabilities and Other Access or Functional Needs 

 
 

11.5

Page 59



Page 2 of 8                               Earthquake Guide for People with Disabilities/AFN © 10/3/2014 Earthquake Country Alliance 

STEP 2 – Plan to Be Safe by creating a disaster plan and deciding how you 
will communicate in an emergency. 
 

Include your family and Personal Support Team (PST) when creating, reviewing, and 
practicing your plans: 
 

• Develop your Personal Support Team 
(PST) at home, work, and every place 
where you spend a lot of time.   

o A PST is made up of at least three 
people who are within walking 
distance and can assist you 
immediately, such as family, 
neighbors and co-workers.  

o Team members will need to know 
how to enter your home to check 
on you in case you are injured or 
cannot answer the door.  

o Make sure your team knows your schedule, how best to assist you, how to 
operate any necessary equipment, and inform them when you go out of town. 

• Label all your adaptive equipment with your current contact information. 
• Identify an out of area contact. Preferably someone who lives out of state and is willing 

to be your main point of contact for family 
and friends on your status.  Make sure 
your PST has your contact’s information.  

• Have an evacuation plan – identify a 
meeting place just outside your home 
where you can make sure everyone has 
gotten out safely.  Identify a second 
meeting place outside of your 
neighborhood in case you cannot return 
home. Share this information with your 
PST and family members.  

• If you are near a beach, large lake or in a 
tsunami evacuation zone, learn what to do at www.tsunamizone.org. 

• Make a care plan for your pets as they most likely will not be allowed in shelters.  Only 
service animals are allowed in shelters.  Check with your local animal control or SPCA 
about pet sheltering in a disaster. 

• More recommendations for how to Plan to be Safe are at 
www.earthquakecountry.org/step2. 
 

  

Page 60



Page 3 of 8                               Earthquake Guide for People with Disabilities/AFN © 10/3/2014 Earthquake Country Alliance 

STEP 3 – Organize Disaster Supplies in convenient locations 
 

Create a kit specific to your needs. Include the following: 

• Food (consider your specific dietary needs) 
• Water 
• Medications (both prescription and over-the-counter medications) and medical supplies 
• Medical information and medication list 
• Copy of prescriptions 
• Emergency contact information 
• Communication supplies 
• Flashlight with extra batteries 
• Supplies for your specific needs  

o Examples: Hearing aid batteries, eye glasses, walking 
stick, oxygen or nebulizer supplies, blood glucose tester, 
special equipment or hygiene and catheter supplies, 
feeding equipment, and VNS magnet 

• Radio with extra batteries. Consider getting a NOAA weather radio too 
• Cash 
• Set of clothes, appropriate for the season 
• Heavy gloves (suitable to clean debris and chemicals) 
• Hygiene Supplies 
• First Aid Kit 
• Face mask to protect from dust and debris 
• Copy of photo ID/driver’s license and utility bill 

o For identification and proof of address (may be needed if you must go to a 
shelter, re-enter an evacuation area or apply for disaster assistance) 

• Attach a Go Bag to your bedpost or bed frame with flashlight, batteries, sturdy close-
toed shoes, heavy gloves, a whistle or noise maker, and an emergency information list. 

 
Service animal/pet owners need to make a kit containing supplies for these animals. For more 
information about pet/service animal preparedness see http://www.ccadt.org/emergency-kits-
for-household-pets.html  
 
Learn more about Organizing Disaster Supplies at www.earthquakecountry.org/step3. 
 
 
STEP 4 – Minimize Financial Hardship by organizing important documents, 
strengthening your property, and considering insurance. 
 
Learn how to Minimize Financial Hardship at www.earthquakecountry.org/step4. 

 
  

Page 61



Page 4 of 8                               Earthquake Guide for People with Disabilities/AFN © 10/3/2014 Earthquake Country Alliance 

STEP 5 – Drop, Cover, and Hold On when the ground shakes 
 
Practice what to do: 
 

• Participate in a Great ShakeOut Earthquake Drill in your region (www.shakeout.org) and 
encourage others, including your personal support team, to participate with you! 

• Put your plan into action during your drills. Include 
family members, personal support team members, and 
caregivers.  

• Challenges identified during your drill will provide the 
opportunity to revise your plan to better accommodate 
your needs. 

 
What to do During an Earthquake: 
 

Protect yourself in the safest place possible near where you are. The greater your limitations 
the more critical it is to create safe spaces for yourself. 
 
Do NOT try to exit a building during an earthquake. You are more likely to be injured when you 
attempt to exit structures during the shaking. 
 
Drop under a sturdy piece of furniture or against an inside wall. Take Cover under a desk or 
table if possible and protect your head and neck with one arm/hand. Hold On to a desk or 
furniture leg to keep it from shifting or uncovering you until the shaking completely stops. Learn 
more at www.earthquakecountry.org/step5. 
 
If it is difficult to Drop, Cover, and Hold On: 
 

• If you are in a wheelchair, recliner or bed, stay put and do not try to 
transfer during the shaking. Cover your head and neck with your 
arms or a pillow until the shaking stops.   

• People who use wheelchairs:  lock your wheels and cover your 
head and neck until the shaking stops. The force of the earthquake 
may knock you to the ground. 

• The shaking motion may increase difficulties moving around for 
those with mobility or balance issues. 

• If you have difficulty getting back up after dropping under a desk or 
table, get as low as possible and move away from windows or 
other items that can fall on you. 

• If it helps, count out loud until the shaking stops. Hearing your 
voice can ground you, help reassure others you are okay and keep them calm and focused. 

 
 
 
 

Page 62



Page 5 of 8                               Earthquake Guide for People with Disabilities/AFN © 10/3/2014 Earthquake Country Alliance 

STEP 6 – Improve Safety after earthquakes by evacuating if necessary, 
helping the injured, and preventing further injuries or damage. 
 

Once the shaking stops:  
• Check yourself for injury, paying extra attention to areas where you have reduced 

sensations.    
• A tsunami may be possible for coastal regions that 

experience shaking for more than 20 seconds. In those 
instances you should move inland to a nearby hill or to a 
higher floor of a large building. Do not wait for an official 
warning. 

• Be prepared for aftershocks. Stay close to and aware of 
the safe spaces in your environment. 

• Look around for hazards such as broken glass and 
objects in your way. 

• Furniture may have shifted and sound cues may not be available to individuals with visual 
disabilities. 

• Evacuate only if necessary, otherwise stay where you are. 
• If the authorities advise an evacuation for your area, follow their directions immediately. 
• Learn more about how to Improve Safety at www.earthquakecountry.org/step6. 
 
 

STEP 7 – Reconnect and Restore:  Restore daily life by reconnecting with 
others, repairing damage, and rebuilding community 
 

• Follow your disaster plan. 
• Notify your out of area contact of your status, then keep phone lines clear. Text messaging 

may be more reliable than phone calls. 
• Expect aftershocks and remain aware of your surroundings. The aftershocks may change 

conditions or create new hazards; continue to be prepared to protect yourself.  
• Repair or replace damaged items as needed. 
• After any disaster, review and revise your disaster plan. Apply any lessons learned.  
• Learn more about how to Reconnect and Restore at www.earthquakecountry.org/step7. 
 

Considerations for refrigerated medications: 

• When there is a loss of power, keep medications 
in the refrigerator until it becomes warm, at which 
point they can be moved it to the freezer. When 
the freezer becomes too warm, transfer 
medication to a small, insulated container and use 
chemical cold packs to keep cool. 

• Ask your doctor or pharmacist how long your 
medications can be unrefrigerated. 

• If you evacuate to a shelter, tell shelter staff that 
you have refrigerated medications. 

 
 

Page 63



Page 6 of 8                               Earthquake Guide for People with Disabilities/AFN © 10/3/2014 Earthquake Country Alliance 

 
 
 
Disability-Specific Tips:  
 
People with Developmental/Cognitive/Intellectual Disabilities: 
• Have a written or visual checklist with short, easy steps. 
• Include communication tools in your kit that you know how 

to use. People who are nonverbal can include pictures, 
written phrases, or Kwik Points for easier communication.   

• Store extra batteries for portable communication devices. 
• Practice Drop, Cover, and Hold On and your plan. Regular 

practice will help you to remember what to do and to 
remain calmer when a disaster occurs. 

• Practice telling care assistants and responders how to 
communicate with you, such as using simple, short, and clear language for instructions.  

 
 
People who are Deaf or Hard of Hearing: 
• Have more than one method to receive warnings and evacuation information. 
• Store extra batteries in your disaster kits for hearing or communication devices. 
• Keep pen and paper in your kits for receiving and communicating information.  
• Prior to an earthquake, identify and test multiple ways to receive warnings and evacuation 

information. Ask a PST member to keep you up to date on emergency information as it is 
released. 

 
 
People who are Blind or Visually Impaired: 
• Earthquakes can cause items to fall and furniture to shift making navigating the room more 

difficult. 
• Sound clues may not be available. 
• While evacuating move slowly and check for obstacles in the way. Shuffling your feet when 

there is a lot of debris on the ground will reduce your likelihood of falling. 
• Store extra canes, batteries and supplies for your communication devices.  
• Label emergency supplies using large print, fluorescent tape, Braille, or other preferred 

methods. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 64



Page 7 of 8                               Earthquake Guide for People with Disabilities/AFN © 10/3/2014 Earthquake Country Alliance 

 
 
For Service Animals:   
• Keep license and ID tags on service animals at all times.   
• Keep copies of any service animal certification or documentation including immunization 

records, medications, and veterinarian’s contact information in your service animal’s 
disaster kit. 

• Store extra animal food, water, and feeding bowls. 
• Keep an extra harness and/or leash with your disaster 

supplies. 
• Your service animal may be frightened or injured and may not 

be able to work after the earthquake. There is increased risk of 
injury to their paws from broken glass or debris on the ground.   

• Be prepared to use alternate equipment if your animal cannot 
provide its normal services.  

• Arrange for your PST to check on you and your animal. 
• Service animals are allowed in shelters, pets are not. Be 

prepared to explain what services your animal performs for you.   
 
 
HIGHLIGHTS FROM THESE TIPS:  
 

 Create safe spaces for yourself.  
 Develop your Personal Support Team (PST) and include them in all phases of your 

planning.  
 Help members of your PST develop their individual and family plans.  
 Make disaster supply kits for your home, car, and office and for your service animal. 
 Practice Drop, Cover, and Hold On and your disaster plan. 
 Advocate for yourself!  Make sure you are included in practice drills at home, work and in 

your community. 
 Volunteer with your local Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) or other 

community-based emergency response organization. 
 Update your plan, contacts, and supplies at least annually so they are current.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 65



Page 8 of 8                               Earthquake Guide for People with Disabilities/AFN © 10/3/2014 Earthquake Country Alliance 

 
Additional Resources for People with Disabilities and Other Access & 
Functional Needs: 
 

 
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) 
www.ready.gov/individuals-access-functional-needs   
 
Earthquake Country Alliance/ShakeOut 
www.earthquakecountry.org/disability 
 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) 
www.cdc.gov/Features/EmergencyPreparedness 
 
Preparing Together – Salvation Army 
www.preparingtogether.org/mm5/merchant.mvc 
 
EPI Global – inclusive emergency management practices and resources 
www.epiglobal.org  
 
Disaster resources for people with disabilities and others with access & functional needs 
www.JIK.com/disaster.html   
 
CA Emergency Management Agency, Office of Access & Functional Needs (OAFN) 
www.calema.ca.gov/ChiefofStaff/Pages/Access-and-Functional-Needs.aspx 
 
Preparedness for Pets and Service Animals 
www.ccadt.org/disaster-preparedness.html  
 
 

Page 66



11/25/2014 Earthquake Country Alliance: Seven Steps to Earthquake Safety

http://earthquakecountry.org/step3/ 1/2

HOME      Contact Us  Search▾  ECA Regions  ▾ ▾  Languages  ▾

PREPARE  Before  SURVIVE  During  RECOVER  After  Know Your Risk  Resources  News & Events  The Alliance

STEP 3: ORGANIZE DISASTER SUPPLIES

Organize disaster supplies in convenient
locations.

Everyone should have personal disaster supplies kits.
Keep them where you spend most of your time, so they
can be reached even if your building is badly damaged.
The kits will be useful for many emergencies.

Everyone should have disaster supplies kits stored in
accessible locations at home, at work and in your
vehicle. Having emergency supplies readily available can reduce the impact of an earthquake, a terrorist
incident or other emergency on you and your family. Your disaster supplies kits should include food, water,
flashlights, portable radios, batteries, a first aid kit, cash, extra medications, a whistle, fire extinguisher, etc.

Keep one kit in your home, another in your car, and a third kit at work. Backpacks or other small bags are best
for your disaster supplies kits so you can take them with you if you evacuate. Include at least the following
items: 

Medications, prescription list, copies of
medical cards, doctor's name and contact
information
Medical consent forms for dependents
First aid kit and handbook
Examination gloves (nonlatex)
Dust mask
Spare eyeglasses or contact lenses and

cleaning solution
Bottled water
Whistle (to alert rescuers to your location)
Sturdy shoes
Emergency cash
Road maps

List of emergency outofarea contact phone
numbers
Snack foods, high in water and calories
Working flashlight with extra batteries and

light bulbs, or light sticks
Personal hygiene supplies
Comfort items such as games, crayons,

writing materials, teddy bears
Toiletries and special provisions you need for

yourself and others in your family including
elderly, disabled, small children, and animals.
Copies of personal identification (drivers

license, work ID card, etc.)

Household disaster supplies kit

Electrical, water, transportation, and other vital systems can be disrupted for several days or much longer in
some places after a large earthquake. Emergency response agencies and hospitals could be overwhelmed and
unable to provide you with immediate assistance. Providing first aid and having supplies will save lives, will
make life more comfortable, and will help you cope after the next earthquake. 

In addition to your personal disaster supplies kits, store a household disaster supplies kit in an easily
accessible location (in a large watertight container that can be easily moved), with a supply of the following
items to last at least 3 days and ideally for 2 weeks: 

Water (minimum one gallon a day for each
person)
Wrenches to turn off gas and water

supplies
Work gloves and protective goggles
Heavy duty plastic bags for waste, and to

serve as tarps, rain ponchos, and other uses
Portable radio with extra batteries (or hand

crank for charging)
Additional flashlights or light sticks

Canned and packaged foods
Charcoal or gas grill for outdoor cooking

and matches if needed
Cooking utensils, including a manual can

opener
Pet food and pet restraints
Comfortable, warm clothing including extra

socks
Blankets or sleeping bags, and perhaps

even a tent
Copies of vital documents such as

insurance policies

THE SEVEN STEPS

PREPARE

1.  Secure Your Space

2.  Plan to be Safe

3.  Organize Disaster
Supplies

4.  Minimize Financial
Hardship

SURVIVE

5.  Drop, Cover, and
Hold On

6.  Improve Safety

RECOVER

7.  Reconnect and Restore

Page 67

http://www.earthquakecountry.org/search.php
http://earthquakecountry.org/step2/index.html
http://www.earthquakecountry.org/resources
http://earthquakecountry.org/step1/index.html
http://www.earthquakecountry.org/news
http://www.earthquakecountry.org/contact_us.php?site=eqcinfo
http://earthquakecountry.org/step6/index.html
http://earthquakecountry.org/step4/index.html
http://www.earthquakecountry.org/survive
http://www.earthquakecountry.org/
http://www.earthquakecountry.org/
http://earthquakecountry.org/step7/index.html
http://www.earthquakecountry.org/risk
http://www.earthquakecountry.org/recover
http://www.earthquakecountry.org/alliance
http://earthquakecountry.org/step3/index.html
http://www.earthquakecountry.org/prepare
http://earthquakecountry.org/step5/index.html


11/25/2014 Earthquake Country Alliance: Seven Steps to Earthquake Safety

http://earthquakecountry.org/step3/ 2/2

©2014   Southern California Earthquake Center @ 

Use and replace perishable items like water, food, medications and batteries on a yearly basis. 

A special note about children

If earthquakes scare us because we feel out of control, think how much more true this must be for
children, who already must depend on adults for so much of their lives. It is important to spend time with
children in your care before the next earthquake to explain why earthquakes occur. Involve them in
developing your disaster plan, prepare disaster supplies kits, and practice "drop, cover, and hold on."
Consider simulating postearthquake conditions by going without electricity or tap water. 

After the earthquake, remember that children will be under great stress. They may be frightened, their
routine will probably be disrupted, and the aftershocks won't let them forget the experience. Adults tend to
leave their children in order to deal with the many demands of the emergency, but this can be devastating
to children. Extra contact and support from parents in the early days will pay off later. Whenever possible,
include them in the recovery process.

Home   PREPARE  Before   SURVIVE  During   RECOVER  After   Know Your Risk   Resources   News & Events   The Alliance

Page 68

http://www.earthquakecountry.org/survive
http://www.usc.edu/
http://www.earthquakecountry.org/news
http://www.earthquakecountry.org/alliance
http://www.earthquakecountry.org/resources
http://www.earthquakecountry.org/risk
http://www.scec.org/
http://www.earthquakecountry.org/prepare
http://www.earthquakecountry.org/index.html
http://www.earthquakecountry.org/recover

	PAPCO_Meeting_Notice_20150126
	PAPCO_Meeting_Agenda_20150126
	PAPCO_Meeting_Agenda_Packet_pages_20150126
	3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20141124
	4_Implementation_Guidelines_Memo_wattachments_20150126
	4_Implementation_Guidelines_Memo_20150126
	4A_Summary_of_Programs_AttachA_20150126
	4B_Imp_Guidelines_Draft_AttachB_20150126

	8.1_PAPCO_Calendar_of_Events_20150126
	8.2_FY14-15_PAPCO_Work_Plan_20150126
	8.3_PAPCO_Appointments_20150126
	10.1_EBP_SRAC_Meeting_Minutes_20141104
	11.1_ESPA_Veterans_Transportation_20150126
	11.2_2014_Paratransit_Outreach_Summary_Report_20150126
	11.4_Reg_MM_5310_Draft_Project_of_Projects_Memo_20150126
	FTA Section 5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities Program for the Bay Area’s Large Urbanized Areas Draft Program of Projects 

	11.5_Preparedness_Info_20150126




